

6/4/2015

Page 1

DETROIT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

REGULAR AFTERNOON MEETING

THURSDAY, JUNE 4, 2015 3:00 PM

1301 THIRD STREET

DETROIT PUBLIC SAFETY HEADQUARTERS

DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48226

1 COMMISSIONERS:

2

3 GEORGE ANTHONY, Secretary

4 WILLIE BELL, Chairperson

5 LISA CARTER, Vice-Chairperson (Dist. 6)

6 DONNELL R. WHITE, Commissioner Appointed

7 RICHARD SHELBY, Commissioner (Dist. 1)

8 BISHOP EDGAR VANN, Commissioner (Dist. 2)

9 REGINALD CRAWFORD, Commissioner (Dist. 3)

10 WILLIE E. BURTON, Commissioner (Dist. 5)

11 RICARDO R. MOORE, Commissioner (Dist. 7)

12 EVA GARZA DEWAELESCHE, Commissioner (Appointed)

13 CONRAD MALLETT, Commissioner, (Appointed)

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22 REPRESENTING THE CHIEF OF POLICE'S OFFICE:

23

24 DEPUTY CHIEF RENEE HALL

25

1 Detroit, Michigan
2 Thursday, June 4, 2015
3 About 2:58 p.m.

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: Good afternoon. I
5 want to extend a warm welcome to the weekly
6 meeting of the Board of Police Commissioners.

7 I am your Chair, Willie Bell of
8 District 4 and this is a great afternoon to be
9 inside the Public Safety Building for the
10 meeting, so I'm going to call the meeting to
11 order.

12 At this time I going to ask our Chief
13 Investigator Pamela Davis-Drake to come forward
14 for our prayer.

15 CHIEF INV. DAVIS-DRAKE: Thank you,
16 Mr. Chair. Let us bow our heads.

17 (INVOCATION WAS GIVEN.)

18 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. At this
19 time I'm going to ask our Board Secretary, George
20 Anthony, to conduct the roll call, please.

21 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Thank you,
22 Mr. Chair. For the record, George Anthony,
23 Secretary to the Board.

24 Commissioner Lisa Carter is running
25 late. Commissioner Willie E. Burton is running

1 late.

2 Commissioner Reginald Crawford?

3 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Present.

4 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Eva
5 Garza Dewaelsche is running late. Commissioner
6 Conrad Mallet?

7 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Present.

8 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Ricardo
9 R. Moore?

10 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Present.

11 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner
12 Richard Shelby?

13 COMMISSIONER SHELBY: Present.

14 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner
15 Jessica Taylor has asked to be excused.
16 Commissioner Bishop Edgar Vann?

17 COMMISSIONER VANN: Present.

18 SECRETARY ANTHONY: And Commissioner
19 Donnell R. White? That completes the roll call
20 of the commissioners. You do have a quorum of
21 six.

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir.

23 And to my immediate left sitting in for Chief
24 Craig is the young lady from Lansing, Michigan,
25 been busy up in Lansing -- I should say Mackinaw,

1 maybe she's been in Lansing too, so good to see
2 that you're representing the DPD and City of
3 Detroit at that particular forum.

4 I know there's some serious issues up
5 here, so -- I didn't give your name, Deputy Chief
6 Renee Hall.

7 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: Thank you.

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.

9 Mr. Anthony, would you introduce the staff for
10 the Board of Police Commissioners, please?

11 SECRETARY ANTHONY: You have present
12 Ms. Pamela Davis-Drake, our Chief Investigator;
13 also Ms. Linda Bernard, our attorney to the
14 Board; Mr. Robert Brown, our administrative
15 assistant; Sgt. Alan Quinn who's recording our
16 proceedings and Mr. Dale Rose from Hanson Court
17 Reporting Service who's taking the transcript.

18 That completes the introductions, sir.

19 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir.
20 Next item of business would be approval of the
21 agenda for this meeting on Thursday, June 4.

22 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: So moved,
23 Mr. Chairman.

24 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Supported.

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been properly

1 moved and supported. Ready for the question?

2 Those in favor say aye?

3 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: Opposed? Motion
5 carries. Item 8 would be the approval of the
6 minutes from Thursday, May 28, 2015. The Chair
7 would entertain a motion to that effect.

8 COMMISSIONER MOORE: So moved?

9 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Support.

10 COMMISSIONER BELL: Been properly
11 moved and supported. Ready for the question?

12 Those in favor aye?

13 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

14 COMMISSIONER BELL: Those opposed?
15 Motion carries.

16 (Commissioners White and Burton
17 arrive.)

18 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. It's
19 good to see you Commissioner Donnell White to my
20 left and Commissioner Willie Burton to my right.

21 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Good afternoon,
22 Mr. Chair.

23 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Thank you,
24 Mr. Chair.

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you for your

1 attendance, right on time.

2 The next item of business would be the
3 Chair's report. I have a brief report. Myself,
4 Commissioner Lisa Carter and her husband Tyrone
5 Carter and Investigator -- is it Investigator or
6 Detective Brian Fountain?

7 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: A detective.

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: Detective.

9 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: He's an
10 investigator. He's an investigator before we had
11 the rank of detective, so he's an investigator.

12 COMMISSIONER BELL: You know, we had an
13 opportunity to attend a forum Men and Boys at
14 Tabernacle Baptist Church Saturday morning, and
15 so it was an excellent forum in terms of issues
16 impacting especially young boys, young men, and
17 the men's fellowship wanted to know in terms of
18 the deacon, etc so it was an excellent forum to
19 talk about some of the issues that we are dealing
20 with.

21 And as always Fountain did an excellent
22 job in terms of a brief PowerPoint, but he has a
23 way to really stir up the crowd in terms of the
24 issues and bring about a great deal of fellowship
25 and Councilman Spivey was the keynote speaker so

1 that was an excellent forum.

2 Last night on June 4 at the 5th
3 Precinct which is now a separate entity, they
4 elected a slate of new officers for the 5th
5 Precinct Police Community Relations Board there,
6 so that was excellent. They was sworn in by the
7 Wayne County County Clerk.

8 It was well attended and we heard from
9 the Chief of Staff Alexis Wiley in reference to
10 the insurance for the city of Detroit, she did a
11 PowerPoint. And they also talked about
12 Mr. Norman White from the Parking Division spoke
13 about the new format in terms of parking meters,
14 Zones 1, 2 and 3 and using your credit card and
15 hopefully they will be more of a better
16 administration of parking issues in the city of
17 Detroit, and they've undertaken that particular
18 task, so you will be hearing more about that, but
19 that was the format in terms of the 5th Precinct.

20 Now we have a serious issue. I
21 listened to the news this morning and also got a
22 little bit of a -- Cliff Russell and Councilman
23 Spivey was on there. He's talking about the
24 four-day curfew, so I assume the commission at
25 some point, maybe under new business, or I assume

1 the Deputy Chief might speak to that, I think we
2 need to have some discussion in reference to
3 that.

4 That is something totally different in
5 reference to impacting our young people in the
6 city of Detroit. And Council is going to have a
7 hearing next week I think at 10 o'clock, a public
8 hearing, on that particular issue.

9 We haven't been briefed on it, but
10 after we get a briefing at this time in terms of
11 the Deputy Chief reporting out, but I have a
12 great deal of concern, and pretty sure you all
13 have a great deal of concern about the issue of
14 that nature where young people are under a great
15 deal of scrutiny. It seems like it impacts all
16 the good kids in the city of Detroit versus the
17 few people in my opinion in terms of
18 participating in activities traditionally in the
19 city of Detroit.

20 So I'm pretty sure we can tune into
21 that particular issue, so as we move forward
22 that's my report.

23 And I just want to mention one other
24 young man who -- there was a feature story for
25 those who relate to the '70s, Northwestern High

1 School, Henry Carr, he was a legend in terms of
2 high school track, college track, went on to win
3 two gold metals in terms of the 400 meters and
4 also the 4 by 4. He passed away in the South and
5 that was a feature story because he got all of
6 the accolades, played three years of professional
7 football, but he got tied up in drugs, but he was
8 able to regroup and put his life back together,
9 so there's hope for others in terms of that type
10 of stature in terms of his commitment.

11 He was known as, I think, the Gray
12 Ghost. He was really a fantastic person who
13 recognized -- I think one of the unsung heroes
14 from the city of Detroit in terms of track and
15 field, and they did an excellent article in
16 reference to his life.

17 So perhaps you can get a chance to see
18 that or read about. And those who cannot
19 identify what I'm talking about, but to achieve a
20 gold metal in the 400 and also 4 by 4, went on to
21 play professional football, that's quite an
22 achievement in terms of Northwestern High School,
23 public school. Really all the teams were very
24 very competitive back in those days, so on that
25 note it's time to hear from our Chief

1 Investigator Pamela Davis-Drake in terms of the
2 OCI monthly update.

3 CHIEF INV, DAVIS-DRAKE: Thank you,
4 Mr. Chair. It's good to always come prepared. I
5 didn't know I was on the agenda today. All
6 right.

7 The Citizen Complaint Report received
8 for the month of May, 2015, we have currently
9 during the month of May we received 89 complaints
10 as opposed to in 2014 we received 131 complaints,
11 so there is a 32 percent decrease which is the
12 norm for the last few months, we have received a
13 decrease and the number of cases have declined.

14 Year to date, at the end of May, 2015
15 the Office of the Chief Investigator had 170 open
16 cases, cases filed 401, cases closed 423.

17 Received complaints for the month of
18 May, 2015 of the 89 cases filed in May, 2015 39
19 percent included unknown officers. The alleged
20 known units involved and leading in complaints
21 were the 6th, 8th and 9th precincts at 6 percent,
22 10 percent and 5th Precinct at 4 percent.

23 The 89 cases filed in May, 2015
24 involved 171 allegations where the leading area
25 of concern were procedure 32 percent, demeanor 24

1 percent, service 23 percent and force at 6
2 percent.

3 Closed complaints during May of 2015
4 68 CCRs were closed. Of those 68 cases closed in
5 May, 2015 involved 113 allegations where the
6 findings were as follows: Not sustained 38
7 percent, unfounded 16 percent, exonerated 12
8 percent and sustained 11 percent.

9 And the leading areas of concern in
10 those 68 cases closed in May, 2015 were as
11 follows: Procedure 45 percent, demeanor 29
12 percent, service at 10 percent and force at 5
13 percent.

14 And that concludes my report. Are
15 there any questions?

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioners?

17 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Thank you,
18 Mr. Chair. Thank you, Chief. I'm looking at the
19 unknown officer allegations report. Probably
20 since one of the first times I started asking
21 that we track it that I've seen a decline over
22 the years, so I'm sure there's several factors
23 that are playing a role to that, just wanted to
24 offer my acknowledgment and congratulations or
25 acknowledgments to both the department and your

1 office because I'm sure we're doing some things
2 differently and doing some things right.

3 And I just wanted to ask, Mr. Chair, if
4 you could hear from either the Chief and/or the
5 department in terms of what they believe are
6 leading us to this point because I think it's one
7 thing for us to be tracking allegations, but if
8 we don't know who the allegations are again, then
9 I think it's kind of us spinning our wheels and
10 so it's good to see that number finally trending
11 downward over the last three years.

12 CHIEF INV. DAVIS-DRAKE: Well, I can
13 definitely say on our part we are -- well, the
14 investigative process has not changed. We are
15 still diligently seeking witnesses, individuals
16 that may know the officers, but also the citizens
17 are coming forth and a lot of the citizens now
18 know the officers' names, the officers readily
19 have their badges on and they are -- it's visible
20 to them so they can see those.

21 But that's always been the standard for
22 DPD, so I can't speak for the department, but I
23 know that efforts have been made to make sure
24 that that is happening and on our end we're
25 making sure that we are overturning every stone

1 to make sure that we can find an officer when one
2 is available and when we can find them.

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: Deputy Chief?

4 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: I just wanted to
5 say we're more diligent as it relates to wearing
6 our body mics, turning on our cameras, so we are
7 able to say if something happened where it
8 happened and who the officer was involved as well
9 as ensuring that all officers are in their proper
10 uniform, names are properly displayed, so just a
11 plethora of different things that we're doing to
12 ensure that we're interacting with our citizens.

13 And when we get a citizen contact that
14 it's documented in some kind of way.

15 CHIEF INV. DAVIS-DRAKE: And one thing,
16 I'm sorry, if you will allow me, one thing I'm
17 noticing even when reading the reports, when the
18 officers are asked for their names and badge
19 numbers they are providing those more readily, so
20 that certainly speaks to the good work that the
21 department is doing in training and making sure
22 that the officers are interacting favorably with
23 the department and the citizens.

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: Any other
25 questions?

1 COMMISSIONER SHELBY: Ma'am, would you
2 say that most complaints as relates to demeanor,
3 would you say most of our officers are from
4 non-uniform units?

5 CHIEF INV. DAVIS-DRAKE: No, I can't
6 say that. I think it's across the board. Yeah,
7 I can't say. I would have to look and probably
8 do something a little bit more in detail for you,
9 but I think it's pretty much across the board.

10 I don't think that it's just a specific
11 unit or specific units that are un-uniformed. I
12 think it's across the board, pretty consistent.

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Wouldn't you say
14 that most of our contact of this nature is in
15 reference to uniform officers?

16 CHIEF INV. DAVIS-DRAKE: I would think
17 probably the opposite, and it's because of the
18 interaction, especially when you're on -- working
19 with the public when you're out on the streets,
20 when you are traffic, that is another big one we
21 receive, so the more interaction obviously that
22 you have the more likely you could have a contact
23 that could be construed as unfavorable.

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: Any other questions
25 or concerns? Chief Investigator, would you speak

1 to -- we received communications from Chief Craig
2 in reference to recruit class 2015-C that's going
3 to graduate on June 12th at Second Ebenezer
4 Church.

5 Would you speak to our interaction with
6 the class this past Friday?

7 CHIEF INV. DAVIS-DRAKE: Sure. Very
8 positive interaction. Actually, Commissioner,
9 you and I spoke with the class to tell them
10 about the Board and the Board's functions and
11 duties and also what the Office of the Chief
12 Investigator does and how they can stay out of
13 our office basically, and very positive
14 interaction. It was a wonderful class, very
15 diverse class, asked great questions. I think
16 they're going to be assets to the community.

17 Just to stress the importance for
18 making sure the interaction is favorable. When
19 they go out into the community, they are going to
20 be welcomed. They want to, the community
21 certainly welcomes them and that as long as they
22 continue to provide that professional demeanor
23 they will have no problem with the community, so
24 -- and they were wonderful.

25 Very good class, great questions, very

1 intelligent class. I think they're going to be a
2 wonderful asset to the department so it was a
3 pleasure working with them.

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: And Commissioner
5 Dewaelsche also attended. She wanted to revisit
6 -- and she has two years DPD experience, I want
7 the record to reflect that she has two years
8 police experience, so she's part of the DPD
9 family and former commissioner, this is her
10 second go-around and it was a good exchange in
11 terms of her observations and she took notes and
12 questions for you too.

13 CHIEF INV. DAVIS-DRAKE: She did
14 indeed.

15 COMMISSIONER BELL: So that was
16 excellent and the academy staff. Commission,
17 any other dialog with Chief Investigator? Thank
18 you.

19 CHIEF INV. DAVIS-DRAKE: Thank you.

20 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you for your
21 PowerPoint. Deputy Chief Hall, you have the
22 floor.

23 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: First of all, good
24 afternoon. I want to take just a second
25 to introduce the DPD members who are here.

1 Director Gail Oxendine, we have Jack
2 Finasee and Commander Dushane Sims who's here
3 today.

4 Just to bring you up to speed where DPD
5 is, we are still experiencing some lows as it
6 relates to our crimes. We had an incident about
7 a week ago with a carjacking had a spike, but
8 we're still experiencing a 17 percent decrease
9 year-to-date, 19 percent decrease in robberies
10 year to date and we've actually taken a turn in
11 the right direction, we're down 7 percent in
12 non-fatal shootings.

13 We're only up 3 percent in aggravated
14 assaults and 8 percent in criminal homicides.
15 Still doing everything we can to ensure that
16 we're driving crime down in the city, not nearly
17 where we want to be, but we're better than we
18 have been in the past, so we'll just continue to
19 drive that down.

20 You did speak earlier about, Mr. Chair,
21 that I had a chance to go up to Mackinaw and
22 represent the Detroit Police Department. I did
23 sit on a board regarding a panel decision for
24 race opportunity and cohesion in the city of
25 Detroit and it was real good. We talked about

1 those issues that are plaguing Detroit.

2 Just to piggyback, the new officers
3 that are coming into the police department, the
4 one thing that DPD is doing, and this is out of
5 my shop, they have -- we have a spirit of service
6 campaign. Each officer, new officer, coming to
7 the police department will go through a week
8 where they feed the homeless, they feed the
9 senior citizens, they go to an elementary school,
10 a high school and they interact with the
11 community.

12 We have to get back to the point that
13 we service this community and we have to
14 understand the dynamics that we service, so that
15 is something that the new corporals and the new
16 police officers will go through one week. It
17 already started about three weeks ago, so we've
18 had several people already go through the
19 program. The officers love it, they think it's a
20 wonderful experience and it gives them the chance
21 to get in touch with who the community actually
22 is, so we can continue to push service.

23 Some of the things that are up and
24 coming, you talked about the fireworks.
25 Fireworks and River Days is on the horizon. We

1 are gearing up as a police department to police
2 those events. And I'll leave the rest of it to
3 your public discussion and questions, but the
4 police department continues to press forward. We
5 are experiencing some great successes.

6 We have our new police assistants
7 program that's getting underway. We're seeing
8 some of our retired police officers come back to
9 the police department to be able to serve in a
10 capacity where we can put the sworn officers back
11 on the street and provide the public with the
12 service that they deserve.

13 So those are just some of the things
14 that we're doing with the Detroit Police
15 Department and I'll entertain any questions that
16 you may have.

17 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Through the Chair,
18 Deputy Chief, what are the youth doing during
19 those four days at the River Walk they're not
20 doing the other 361 days in the city?

21 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: Well, we have
22 intel. As you know being a former Detroit police
23 officer we have gang intel who goes on social
24 media and these individuals congregate and they
25 tweet and they talk about the things that they're

1 going to do collectively in that respective area.

2 That's not something that they do on a
3 regular basis because on a regular basis they're
4 focusing on their respective sides of town doing
5 the different things that they do, but this is an
6 organized event where there's going to be
7 hundreds if not thousands of other individuals
8 that they can come in contact with they haven't
9 seen that live on different sides of town and
10 they're going to be in a certain area.

11 So those are the kinds of things that
12 we see. And experience is the best teacher. We
13 forget that police are the subject matter
14 experts. We deal with these actions year after
15 year after year. We see the assaults, the
16 violence, we see it perpetrated upon one another
17 which ultimately affects innocent bystanders. We
18 have a duty and a responsibility to make sure
19 that we keep this city safe, so with that we just
20 asked for additional tools in our tool belt to be
21 able to facilitate that safety, and that's what
22 we asked for.

23 COMMISSIONER MOORE: So just a point or
24 clarity, they don't tweet 361 days out of the
25 year, they don't plan, they don't what?

1 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: They do, but not to
2 that magnitude it. It usually has some different
3 connotation, it's dealing with something
4 different or specific to their respective
5 entities. It's not a coordinated effort the way
6 it is and I can't go into the specifics because
7 it's part of our intel, but it's not the same
8 coordinated effort as it is for River Days and
9 fireworks.

10 And as I said before, experience is the
11 best teacher. Anyone who had a chance to
12 experience River Days last year recognized that
13 as the Deputy Chief of Patrol I have limited
14 resources. I had to pull approximately 150
15 officers from the precincts to be able to police
16 the riverfront.

17 How did the citizens feel about that?
18 You know, that's a question that we have to ask.
19 When we pull 150 officers who are patrolling the
20 city and responsible for taking care of their
21 needs and pull them away just so we can control
22 one area of the city, I don't think it's fair and
23 I think we need to do something.

24 And if we have -- it's foreseeability.
25 We see this as a problem. We have to take the

1 necessary steps to deal with it.

2 COMMISSIONER MOORE: So those 150
3 officers, were they contingency going down there
4 already or were they --

5 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: No, these are
6 Special Ops officers from the precincts because
7 at that particular point in time we had several
8 hundred kids fighting. We have videos. We've
9 shown those videos, so yeah, our Special Ops
10 officers who deal with the violent crime in the
11 neighborhoods who are keeping the residents who
12 are not downtown, keeping them from being victims
13 of robbery or carjacking, those officers have to
14 be pulled away in order to deal with the violent
15 crime that's going on at that particular time in
16 one specific area.

17 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Thank you.

18 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair
19 I have a question for the Chief. Was there a
20 curfew put in place last year during River Days
21 and fireworks?

22 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: Fireworks have had
23 a city-wide curfew for three years. It was -- as
24 a lieutenant in charge of Tactical Operations it
25 was something that I asked the Chief for at that

1 time in 2012 based on the statistics of 2011.

2 We had two -- well, actually three
3 people shot, two males and a 16-year-old
4 bystander who was shot in the leg, several
5 assaults and it was all perpetrated by various
6 gang members who were downtown, so as a way of
7 policing the fireworks I asked for city-wide
8 curfew.

9 It was granted in 2012, '13 and '14 and
10 if you remember, 2012, '13 and '14, and '14 being
11 the last year we had raving reviews of how
12 successful that fireworks was, so we're just
13 asking for the same tools to be able to make
14 River Days equally safe.

15 COMMISSIONER BURTON: How many officers
16 did you have out during River Days and fireworks
17 last year?

18 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: Don't have those
19 numbers in front of me, but River Days, usually
20 those numbers are based upon the organizer and
21 the planner and we assess it. Our Special Events
22 Unit will assess the area that it's going to
23 cover, how many people are going to attend and
24 then we supply police based on that number.

25 They did not anticipate the number of

1 fights and youth that would be involved in
2 violent activities so we could not anticipate
3 that.

4 So when that happens, we had to do
5 debriefing and say if this is what we're going to
6 experience, we're going to have to police
7 differently.

8 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Is there any way
9 you can share your intel with this commission
10 board, with this body, so we can see from a clear
11 perspective what it is you're asking for us?

12 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Excuse me,
13 Mr. Chair. What is this police department asking
14 of us? I don't remember them asking us for
15 anything. Mr. Chair, explain it to me.

16 The police department does not need to
17 ask the Police Commission for the ability to
18 implement their own tactics. They don't need our
19 permission to police inside the city of Detroit.

20 COMMISSIONER BELL: I think what we're
21 having is dialog in reference to this issue.

22 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: I understand,
23 Mr. Chairman. I would be absolutely opposed to
24 receiving police department intelligence,
25 absolutely opposed.

1 There's no reason for us to have that
2 in our hands in order to participate in
3 discussion with the Assistant Chief about
4 decisions that the police department makes by
5 themselves about how to police in the city of
6 Detroit.

7 I just want to remind the commissioners
8 that we are an oversight body responsible from my
9 point of view, and I'm only speaking for myself,
10 for managing the police citizen complaint process
11 and being sure as an oversight body that the
12 police department broadly is doing their job in
13 an appropriate manner following policies and
14 procedures that we are responsible for
15 developing.

16 I am always, Mr. Chairman, going to
17 raise a concern when we shift off into suggesting
18 that we're responsible for helping the police
19 department determine their tactics. There's a
20 public hearing before the Detroit City Council
21 based on a request that they're going to make as
22 I understand it through the news, that's all the
23 information that I have, for permission for the
24 City Council, not from the Board of Police
25 Commissioners, for the City Council to impose a

1 curfew. They're the only ones who can.

2 Beyond that, the -- and I don't see
3 anywhere where it is written down anywhere, and I
4 certainly would be grateful to be corrected, that
5 we are responsible for helping the police
6 department determine the tactics that they're
7 going to use to manage their responsibilities.

8 I just don't see that, Mr. Chairman,
9 and the sharing of intel, what would we do with
10 it if we saw it? We are not qualified to even
11 evaluate it.

12 COMMISSIONER BELL: The point is,
13 Mr. Burton raised a question, but prior to that
14 the Deputy Chief said she could not go into that
15 intel already, she already responded to that part
16 of it, so -- but basically the discussion in
17 reference to the issue at hand I think is
18 appropriate to have that type of dialog.

19 We know we cannot have impact, but it's
20 a public forum it's going forward with the
21 Council, so that sparked some dialog in reference
22 to this body sitting here being a Board of Police
23 Commissioners need to have an idea in terms of it
24 coming back to us in terms of what is your
25 opinion on this four-day curfew.

1 COMMISSIONER BURTON: We are the bridge
2 of accountability between the department and the
3 community, so therefore any intel through the
4 department, this board would like to know how
5 this is being calculated in case something comes
6 back before this body. Thank you very much.

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: Can we -- we'll
8 hear from Commissioner Crawford.

9 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Through the
10 Chair, absolutely the vote, it's my
11 understanding, that's supposed to come before
12 Council. They're going to be the ones who
13 ultimately are going to be able to grant this
14 curfew again, and as they have done in the last
15 three years.

16 However, I will state this imposing the
17 curfew, the city of Detroit -- and I'm sure there
18 will probably be youth there from outside Detroit
19 so when we say curfew, I don't know if it's just
20 River Days -- it is for River Days and the
21 fireworks, I do understand that, but those who
22 are not Detroit youth attending, that may be an
23 issue as to how they're going to enforce that and
24 maybe they'll enforce it on everyone.

25 Also too in reference to intel, I have

1 my own experience, that's my intel. I attended
2 the fireworks last couple of years and I was
3 there with my grandchildren when a shot was fired
4 maybe a couple hundred feet away or so, so I do
5 understand the department and their concerns as
6 to making everything safe down there, so -- but
7 what day was that? I know you gave the time,
8 Mr. Chair.

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: My understanding
10 it's going to take place Wednesday morning at 10
11 o'clock, 11 o'clock and Commissioner Spivey was
12 inquiring for the public to respond by e-mail,
13 telephone call, to show up for the hearing and
14 for individuals to weigh in on the issues, and
15 therefore they can make that decision.

16 In reference to this board, we
17 understand the curfew concept, it's always been
18 in place for fireworks, but now we're talking
19 about something totally different and that's why
20 it's a serious issue in terms of the media and
21 all other concerned parties, basically how it's
22 going to impact young people being restricted to
23 their neighborhoods versus being able to have the
24 freedom to enjoy the activities in that time
25 frame, so that's the dialog, that's the debate.

1 So we're not looking at intel. That
2 question came up, Deputy Chief responded, so any
3 other questions or concerns in reference to the
4 commissioners at this time?

5 Yes, sir.

6 COMMISSIONER SHELBY: Are we going to
7 do like a task force where young people can
8 participate, they can come down, they can
9 participate in the event, but they have to be
10 accompanied by an adult or a responsible
11 individual?

12 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: This is exactly,
13 Commissioner Shelby, what this is about. It's
14 about supervising youth. Our issue has always
15 been the unsupervised youth and those are the
16 individuals who cause most of the problems when
17 we have major events throughout the city is the
18 lack of supervision.

19 So we're just encouraging parents not
20 to not have your children at fireworks or River
21 Days, but how about bring them. It's supposed to
22 be a fun family event, so if that is the case
23 bring your children, bring your children to the
24 fireworks, bring them to River Days.

25 My mother could take me to Edgewater,

1 she didn't send me by myself. I'm telling my
2 age.

3 So just -- and that's what we're
4 encouraging is not any desire of ours to
5 criminalize, disenfranchise any group of
6 individuals or discriminate, that's not what it's
7 about.

8 It's just about ensuring that the youth
9 are supervised. We have to protect our youth, we
10 have to protect our citizens and for those who
11 want to engage in criminal activity, we often
12 have to protect our youth from themselves, so
13 that's just what we're asking for is the tools to
14 help us protect everyone.

15 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioner White.

16 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Thank you,
17 Mr. Chair. Thank you, Deputy Chief. You know,
18 I've been a part of that process over the past
19 few years, I've sat in emergency rooms with
20 individuals who've been impacted by the violence,
21 so I understand the intent behind this curfew and
22 I do have some concerns as relates to a city-wide
23 perspective, but I want to limit my comments to
24 the actual curfew other than to just recommend
25 that as we look forward as the community in terms

1 of how we have a successful environment that we
2 not only look to policing solutions, but also pay
3 attention to other opportunities like increased
4 job opportunities for Detroit's youth, increased
5 opportunities and additional hours for city parks
6 and recreational centers, as well as a public
7 awareness campaign for parents in terms of how
8 to, like you said, enjoy these types of events
9 with their young people and also engage our
10 community associations and churches going forward
11 to have a more holistic community solution versus
12 solely a police solution.

13 (Commissioner Dewaelsche arrives.)

14 And lastly as a concern that I've
15 raised over the previous years just how we're
16 corralling our young people.

17 Has anything changed in that process
18 going forward in terms of how we will handle them
19 post-curfew?

20 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: Pretty much the
21 process is the same. We actually just keep them
22 in an area, we have buses that are air
23 conditioned and provided for them. They're not
24 taken to a detention facility, they're taken over
25 to our 4th Precinct area, they're provided water.

1 We even have snacks, we've even resorted to that
2 and their parents are called. So it's more of a
3 gymnasium type of effect, so as I said before,
4 it's not our intent to harm them, to criminalize
5 them. It's just our way of actually keeping them
6 safe and keeping them from being that innocent
7 16-year-old girl who was shot in the ankle
8 because someone decided that they wanted to
9 conduct random gunfire with someone that they may
10 have had some altercation with in the past.

11 (Commissioner Carter arrives.)

12 So that's our way that we do it. We
13 haven't changed anything, but we're open to any
14 suggestion, sir. If you have a suggestion as to
15 how we do this better, we're open to that.

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: On that note, I
17 guess we can close up the dialog which is good
18 dialog because that's the public body and you
19 should have that type of discussion because it's
20 a public issue and you're going to hear more and
21 more about it and hope the people would come out
22 and respond next week before the Council.

23 But even -- you don't have to wait
24 until that target that you can't come downtown,
25 you can weigh in with your councilpeople, let

1 them know.

2 I think it's a serious issue in terms
3 of how we interact with young people. It's going
4 to be ongoing debate and especially as we look at
5 what's happening in the city of Detroit. People
6 feel as though downtown is not their downtown any
7 more. We look at the restriction on Belle Isle,
8 that was another issue in terms of we -- Belle
9 was for the people of Detroit and now we've been
10 restricted, but all of these issues, we can't
11 ignore those issues. That's why there was a
12 conference in Mackinaw that took place. Those
13 are reality. Those are reality discussions that
14 people are having through meetings and forums all
15 over the city in reference to downtown, midtown
16 versus the neighborhood.

17 So I'm pretty sure you are part of
18 those discussions too in terms of that type of
19 awareness, so that's all we ask for. We're not
20 trying to delegate or manage, that's not going to
21 happen anyway, so -- but I think we need to have
22 that type of discussion where you can feel free
23 and be comfortable with people that you deal with
24 in terms of your role here as the Board of Police
25 Commissioners.

1 That's all I'm encouraging, that you be
2 tuned to the issues and concerns of the people,
3 that's why we're here.

4 On that note, next item would be -- we
5 have -- I'm sorry, Chief, were you finished?

6 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: I was. The only
7 thing I wanted us to really take a hard look at
8 is that Belle Isle is ours. The only restriction
9 is that you need to put something on your license
10 plate to be able to go out there. We have to
11 remember that the only thing that changed on
12 Belle Isle is who polices it. Nothing changed
13 for us.

14 I run out at Belle Isle, I drive out to
15 Belle Isle. It's not different for one race of
16 people versus another race of people, another
17 group of people, but it we're going to go
18 anywhere in this city, I don't know if we go to
19 Belle Isle, riverfront, east side, west side,
20 Rouge Park, Maharris Park, we need to know how to
21 act. We need to conduct ourselves in a manner
22 which is conducive to society and that is the
23 issue that people have, not necessarily who you
24 are, what color you are.

25 We have to remember that we have a duty

1 and a responsibility to behave in a certain
2 manner and as a law enforcement professional
3 that's what I want to see, is that we live in a
4 society that is free from violence and free from
5 nonsense.

6 So that's where we are and we need to
7 remember that and encourage that.

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: I agree with you
9 100 percent. Commissioner Carter, did I
10 acknowledge you 10 minutes ago.

11 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Also Commissioner
12 Dewaelsche.

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Ten, 15 minutes
14 ago? Thank you for your attendance, it's good to
15 see you, both of you young ladies.

16 I'm just going to pause one minute in
17 terms of Item 11. Any new business? Any old
18 business?

19 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Through the
20 Chair, under old business in terms of the
21 litigation costs of the city of Detroit, Bishop
22 Vann asked a couple of weeks ago I believe it was
23 at least in terms of if we could get some numbers
24 or figures as to what it was or what it is.

25 I know recently there was a media

1 report recently about litigation costs to the
2 city of Detroit in terms -- in reference to
3 lawsuits and also too in Inkster the cost of
4 police brutality now we find out is \$178.67 per
5 resident.

6 I know we're still in the pilot
7 program, maybe we're out of the pilot program, in
8 terms of body cams. Recently or as of yesterday
9 the ACLU launched an app that's called Mobile
10 Justice Michigan which all citizens can put that
11 app on their cell phone or smart phones and video
12 any type of police activity if they are legally
13 where they're supposed to be, and I was just
14 wanted to know where are we on the body cams
15 because since the citizens -- and of course
16 they've always had this ability to video any
17 public place, any police activity, but now with
18 the ACLU app it's downloaded directly to the ACLU
19 and it also can be to a second or third party.

20 So thank you.

21 COMMISSIONER BELL: Any other concerns?

22 Yes, ma'am.

23 MS. BERNARD: Linda Bernard, attorney
24 to the Board. I have at your request requested
25 in writing an opinion from the Office of

1 Corporation Counsel regarding the issue of police
2 litigation costs. Actually it's a four-part
3 request, Mr. Crawford. It's not just the amount
4 of money that's paid out, it's the amount of
5 money that's paid to outside counsel, it's the
6 amount of money that is required to have a unit
7 within the corporation counsel's office.

8 I talked to Butch this week about it
9 again and I've asked that he have the attorney
10 that's in charge of the Police Litigation Unit
11 appear before the Board with this data, but we
12 don't have any hard data yet; thank you.

13 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Thank you for
14 that update.

15 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: Through the Chair,
16 we just got settlement numbers in regards to the
17 lawsuits from the Law Department, but they
18 haven't been produced because they changed the
19 system, so they are available and as soon as we
20 have them we'll make them available to you.

21 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, Deputy
22 Chief, for that update. So Commissioner
23 Crawford, it's forthcoming.

24 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Mr. Chairman, I
25 wondered could we have an update, maybe a month,

1 month and a half ago, Assistant Chief, we talked
2 about having the department review its policy as
3 it relates to multi-jurisdictional task forces.

4 I just wanted where we were -- where
5 you all were with that review process?

6 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: I do not have that
7 information. What I'm do is I'll go back and get
8 it and get it to you as soon as possible.

9 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Thank you very
10 much.

11 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Through the Chair,
12 is there an update on the body cam as far as how
13 did the second pilot program go.

14 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: That pilot is still
15 going on, it's still ongoing. Actually the
16 program is going really really well. The
17 officers actually are enjoying the body cams, so
18 the citizens of course like it. We actually are
19 enjoying them and are just waiting until the
20 department as a whole can get them.

21 As we've stated several times, and we
22 have the commander from our Internal Affairs
23 Professional Accountability Unit here, body
24 cameras and microphones save more officers than
25 they do harm. Often times -- and Ms. Drake, you

1 can attest to this -- sometimes the complaints
2 and things that are lodged are not necessarily
3 true in their entirety, so the officers have seen
4 that these body cameras actually depict the whole
5 story.

6 Because when we wait on cell phone
7 video or we get some recording from outside
8 sources, it's not always the full picture, so
9 they get the chance to tell the entire story from
10 beginning to end and they're seeming to like it.

11 COMMISSIONER MOORE: How much longer is
12 the program?

13 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: I think it's
14 another 30 days.

15 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the
16 Chair, what was the results from the first pilot
17 program.

18 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: Assistant Chief
19 White has those results. I thought they were
20 delivered to the Board.

21 COMMISSIONER BELL: They reported out,
22 yes, she did.

23 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: I don't have those
24 with me.

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: We just have to

1 revisit the minutes from the meeting, but I think
2 Assistant Chief reported out last year. They
3 were really really pleased with that pilot
4 program, and so therefore we're looking forward
5 to this program getting wrapped up, so it was
6 quite positive.

7 You can go back to the minutes and try
8 to pull out that information.

9 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the
10 Chair, do we have any idea how much it's going to
11 cost for data storage?

12 COMMISSIONER BELL: That was an issue
13 they're working on. Yes, ma'am.

14 MS. WASHINGTON: Celia Washington,
15 Legal Advisor. A couple of comments. With
16 regard to the data storage, that determination
17 has not been made yet because a vendor has not
18 been selected.

19 Among the three vendors that were
20 selected I know at least one of them was
21 cloud-based and a couple of them are
22 server-based. Until the decision is made as to
23 which vendor there's no way to make a
24 determination.

25 With regards to the pilot program, I

1 believe we're wrapping up the 90-day pilot
2 program and I'm sure that AC White will offer
3 once the decision has been made as to which
4 vendor a report will be made to the body.

5 And if I may indulge a little bit, just
6 to follow up on DC Hall, there was discussion
7 about the curfew discussion being an open
8 session.

9 I do want to bring to the Board's
10 attention that the very delicate issues such as
11 intel were discussed in closed session three and
12 a half hours worth yesterday. That part was not
13 on the news and that part was in closed session.
14 We made very sure that the people that were in
15 the room as a matter of fact had a very very
16 clear need to know, so I don't want anybody to
17 think that anybody is withholding any information
18 that was presented to City Council in open
19 session because it was not.

20 COMMISSIONER BELL: We understand they
21 need the information to make the decision. It's
22 not a CIA operation, but it's still serious.

23 MS. WASHINGTON: Pretty darn close,
24 sir.

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: We understand,

1 appreciate that update. I saw it was closed
2 doors and I know Councilman Spivey once again was
3 soliciting people to respond so they can have
4 community input and therefore you can make that
5 decision based on the pulse of the public and
6 also that intel, I'm pretty sure they're quite
7 comfortable that we're not in that position.

8 MS. WASHINGTON: Yes, sir.

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you for
10 sharing that update. Any other old business?

11 I know we approved the agency, but I
12 think it's sort of before we entertain a motion
13 for going into closed session and then come back
14 out for the open debate in terms of decision
15 making, give the public an opportunity who up on
16 time to acknowledge their comments that they
17 have.

18 If they want to come forward we would
19 appreciate at this time for you to come forward
20 and not prolong the stay so give your name and
21 give your two-minute statements and please keep
22 it brief, we appreciate it.

23 MS. SMITH: Bernice Smith, political
24 activist. To the Chief and the Commissioners, I
25 have a complaint from one of my church members in

1 regards to the situation where he reside at. I
2 will give the number out, not publicly because
3 that's not what we do, but in the meantime his
4 complaint is that he is being very upset about
5 his next door neighbor having cars in the
6 driveway and on the curb doing repairs.

7 The house itself belongs to the
8 grandmother and he doesn't know where the
9 grandmother is so he's taken over, the grandson
10 has. In the meantime two of the cars are without
11 license and I told him that as long as they're on
12 the property you can't say anything about it, but
13 if they're on the curb, then you have a
14 complaint.

15 And also he stated that these motor
16 carts that the kids ride on the men ride, they're
17 riding them on the street and on the sidewalk and
18 late at night, it's disturbing to the seniors.
19 Now, this is in the Canfield area, so I will give
20 the correct address out as far as --

21 I did read about you, young lady,
22 Chief, in the paper and you did a wonderful job,
23 they were commenting in regards to what you said
24 about in the meeting at Mackinaw.

25 So I'm very proud of you doing that.

1 This morning there was a discussion with Keith
2 Russell on his program Spivey was there and he
3 made his remarks in regard to whether or not he
4 feels as though we should have a curfew.

5 My thoughts are yes, I think that we
6 should and we should be very careful in regards
7 to handling these youngsters when they do come
8 into our city because I know most of them are
9 coming outside as I found out, but the fact is we
10 have a good city and we're going to keep it that
11 way.

12 And with the police department being
13 under control we're going to copy them under
14 control so therefore I do agree with the curfew
15 and I do hope that the parents will cooperate
16 wholeheartedly with the police department and
17 what they're going to to. And I'm through.

18 COMMISSIONER BELL: Any others? Yes,
19 sir.

20 MR. SCOTT: Ron Scott. I have five
21 points I want to make very quickly. One is I'd
22 like to know if units like Special Ops are used
23 in the body cam tests if they have them because
24 we've been getting some reports that are
25 challenging amount Special Ops and their

1 interaction with citizens, and that were they to
2 be seen wearing on body cam if what the citizens
3 say is correct, might give pause in relationship
4 to the kind of behavior that's going on.

5 Secondly, the Deputy Chief Hall is a
6 very good friend of mine and I wanted to mention
7 you're saying that we have to know how to act. I
8 think some of the people in the DNR and the state
9 police need to know how to act because it was in
10 fact that one of the DNR officers made a
11 statement that was disingenuous, disrespectful
12 and last year that was what led us to take our
13 bicycles out to a park when they talked about
14 individuals that they wanted to get the riffraff
15 off the island and confronted our senior program
16 last year and one of the individuals who was on
17 the island when we were out there for the
18 fireworks last year was Jay Morningstar whose
19 name you may remember in relationship to the
20 shooting of Mr. Magoo in downtown Detroit with
21 his pants hanging down.

22 And I told the state police at that
23 particular time I did not think it was culturally
24 sensitive to have an individual who had had a
25 negative aspect in relationship to the city of

1 Detroit patrolling the island at that point and
2 they did reassign him.

3 So I think that it goes both ways and I
4 don't think -- and I've been involved with that
5 island for years, go to most of the meetings of
6 the conservancy, that many of the young people
7 who have been out there, many of the people have
8 not been unruly.

9 In fact, many times I've actually gone
10 out there during the day, actually feel asleep in
11 the car and nothing happened, so I don't know
12 whether it's a matter of perception, propaganda
13 or whatever, but that island was never the kind
14 of bastion of criminality that some people might
15 want to suggest that it may have been.

16 So I think that we have to really look
17 at that and I think the Chairman's remarks should
18 be taken into consideration. Before there's
19 public policy, there's public perception that is
20 presented. In this particular case about certain
21 people and race is in the factor, no question,
22 class is in the factor, and we have to look at
23 that.

24 So we'd have to look at the DNR culture
25 and the state police culture in terms of how they

1 convey themselves. So as far as the young
2 people, I think the question becomes whether or
3 not we want to look at the issue of prior
4 restraint, whether or not prior restraint is a
5 consideration and we have to look at some stats
6 in terms of who's committing whatever when we
7 begin to do enforcement because when prior
8 restraint becomes an issue, you open yourself up
9 I think to the possibility of litigation. So I
10 just think that's something to give some
11 consideration to.

12 And finally I'd like to make a positive
13 suggestion that there be a youth ambassador,
14 community ambassador program for those of us who
15 work -- and I know Donnell does, we do,
16 Commissioner White -- that we come together with
17 a group of young people and talk to them about
18 how they may intervene and may begin to minimize
19 any potential conflict which might arise in given
20 situations.

21 But I do think that young people have
22 to have some level of mobility so it does not
23 seem that it is in effect a non-lockup lockup, so
24 I just would leave those comments for your
25 consideration.

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir,
2 appreciate it.

3 COMM. BETTISON: Commander Bettison. I
4 just wanted to follow up and just put back on
5 everybody's map we'll have the flyers out next
6 week, but our Youth Summit so we're -- the
7 Detroit Police Department is working very very
8 closely with the youth doing everything and we're
9 always looking to outreach and partnership with
10 the public and private sections, etc, but with
11 the Youth Summit, that's going to be on the 25th
12 and it's going be at the Butzel Family Center and
13 I'll make sure I'll have the flyers to everyone
14 and the exact time of it with be kicked off from
15 2 to 4.

16 So just wanted to put that out there,
17 thanks.

18 COMMISSIONER BELL: Comm. Bettison, I
19 just wanted to say I talked to Inv. Fountain in
20 reference to that on Friday, and it's going to be
21 a huge turnout so I'm hoping that the
22 commissioners will put that on their calendars
23 for you to drop in in that time frame from 11 AM
24 to 4 PM. Butzel is located up in the area of
25 Kercheval and Van Dyke, one of the oldest

1 centers, so hopefully there will be that type of
2 interaction.

3 I know you're bussing young people in
4 and I'm looking forward to that type of
5 interaction because that's basically what we're
6 talking about. We engage in these type forums
7 and we engage them during the summer and during
8 school season, then we can have an impact on
9 these young people. We can continue to hopefully
10 work with parents and try to make their kids
11 accountable just like we were raised in terms of
12 that type of accountability because -- but as you
13 well know, when you get that age of 15 to 14 you
14 want to hang out without your parents, but
15 hopefully at that point in time they know how to
16 behave.

17 But that's something that's really
18 lacking every year in the number of kids that we
19 have to corral, so we're trying to treat them
20 with kid gloves. I have issues with that. We
21 should sock it to them, but that's another issue.

22 But really the parents should be held
23 accountable for these young people because
24 without them, that's why we have issues at
25 Northland, Eastland. When the get out of

1 control, then we have to step in. Why can't they
2 enjoy that, well, because of the behavior, but we
3 want to do -- it's quite positive what you're
4 doing.

5 COMM. BETTISON: And also I've reached
6 out to Mr. Scott and to have him and some of his
7 young folks participate in the planning of it, so
8 we're working together as well.

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir.

10 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: The last
11 comment, I know we talked about this a lot. I
12 just want people to really understand what the AC
13 was saying in terms of the gang situation is more
14 real than sometimes we recognize. We've got
15 Mother Bernice here in the audience. One the
16 other really important institutions in this town
17 is Mother Moore, Helen Moore, and one of the
18 reasons that when we close these high schools,
19 Mr. Chairman, that the dropout rate in the city
20 of Detroit went up so high, you know why,
21 Mr. Chairman, because kids were afraid to go to
22 school.

23 They didn't want to cross X Boulevard
24 because that wasn't where the gang that
25 controlled the neighborhood they lived in had

1 jurisdiction over. All hell broke loose.

2 So the implication that somehow or
3 another and I understand from the comments around
4 the table that this was not what was meant to be
5 conveyed, that somehow or another there's
6 punitive activity going on on behalf of the
7 police department. It's not. We're dealing with
8 reality out there. As much as I know, the police
9 commission is connected to the community. I want
10 you to come to Sinai-Grace Friday night or
11 Saturday night around 11 o'clock and you will see
12 what is going on in town for real.

13 And so, Mr. Chairman -- and I now
14 you've been there, I know I'm preaching to the
15 choir, but I just want to make sure that the
16 public understands that as much progress that we
17 are making and as much appropriate supervisor
18 over the police department that we want to
19 provide, it's tough out there.

20 And when the Chief said we got to
21 protect our children, that's exactly what we need
22 to be doing. Because last week at Sinai-Grace
23 everybody who came in, Mr. Chairman, who had a
24 traumatic injury was less than 18 years old, less
25 than 18 years old. Wasn't an full-fledged adult

1 in the mix and we had a couple of police officers
2 at Sinai-Grace as well.

3 So, you know, Mr. Chairman, it's -- as
4 much progress as we're making, there is
5 tremendous work in front of us.

6 COMMISSIONER BELL: I agree
7 wholeheartedly. We all have to engage because we
8 know the reality. Some people say well, the old
9 Receiving is now Sinai-Grace.

10 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Yeah, that's
11 right.

12 COMMISSIONER BELL: But they incidents
13 at St. John too and all the hospitals. Those are
14 the realities, so the perception is that we are
15 hopefully we can do a whole lot more.

16 Yes, sir.

17 MR. LAWSON: Isiah Lawson. I just want
18 to piggyback on the conversation and dialog,
19 especially with the youth. I think it does take
20 like understanding that age group and going back
21 to when you remember it, my mother, my
22 grandmother used to talk about a Detroit that
23 I've never seen. So going up, she talked about
24 theatres up and down Woodward. I mean, I've
25 never seen anything on Gratiot in my life. I was

1 born in '84. I've never seen anything on Gratiot
2 ever.

3 So when we talk about our youth and
4 like what -- they're the problem -- what do they
5 have to do? I mean, I would expect nothing
6 except mayhem at the hospital when you're just
7 sitting there twiddling your thumbs and you have
8 nothing to do at all and it's no real programming
9 or anything structure.

10 So I encourage what Mr. Scott said
11 about ambassador-type group that works with the
12 youth, but let it be youth ran. It doesn't need
13 to be -- you know what I mean? Like we have to
14 empower the youth in some aspect. I don't have
15 all the answers, it's just ideas, that's all.

16 So I love this dialog, that's great,
17 all right, I'm kicking rocks, thank you, sir.

18 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir. I
19 think that's what Commissioner White is
20 advocating that we have to be more engaging. I
21 know from the Mayor, Council and all concerned
22 parties trying to address these issues.

23 Yes, ma'am.

24 MS. FARMER: Hello, everyone. My
25 name is Alexis Farmer, I'm a student at the

1 University of Michigan, I'm interning at Data
2 Driven, Detroit. Can you all hear me okay?
3 Okay.

4 I'm not sure if you all are familiar
5 with the police data initiative that was recently
6 launched by the White House. I previously worked
7 at the White House as an intern on that
8 particular program and I'm trying to implement
9 that project here in Detroit.

10 What the project is comprised of
11 essentially right now 21 communities are already
12 signed on and those 21 communities have opted to
13 open up three other data sets that aren't
14 currently released to the public, so things like
15 use of force, different citations, different race
16 or gender demographics, pedestrian and/or traffic
17 stops in order to increase transparency and
18 accountability within the police department and
19 community relations.

20 And so I'm hoping -- I don't know what
21 happened before has some leverage over that or
22 even having a representative from the police
23 department that that could happen.

24 I know Chief Craig is someone aware of
25 the issue, but there was a little bit of

1 hesitancy in getting it stated, but I definitely
2 think that it's a valuable source to have here in
3 Detroit.

4 Like I said, 21 communities have
5 already signed on. Code 4 Manta already has
6 comprised of police data offensive that had this
7 data and talks about whether or not it's
8 readable, if you can access it, it's up to date,
9 and so that way citizens can become more engaged
10 with their police departments and just knowing
11 their relationships with different community
12 members. So it's an initiative and project that
13 I hope can come to Detroit and I think would
14 definitely service us well.

15 It could even showcase some of the
16 positive data that both the officer spoke to
17 earlier about complaints decreasing as well as
18 just some of the statistics about different
19 violence being decreased.

20 I know some of that is already reported
21 to the public in open data program, but not all
22 that information that is listed. I think that
23 definitely would be a great addition for people
24 to know.

25 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: Through the Chair,

1 Sgt. Perkins, can you get with her and get her
2 information so we can make sure that the Chief's
3 Office gets back to her.

4 MS. FARMER: Thank you.

5 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Through the
6 Chair, there was a meeting back in January I
7 asked a question about -- so I guess made a
8 suggestion that we start tracking as the young
9 lady just stated the data in terms of the
10 assaults on police officers as well as some of
11 the data that in terms of -- I guess you want to
12 say both sides of it which we can -- I think it's
13 the ultimate in transparency if you have both
14 sides of what's really going on out there in
15 terms -- because we know we hear about the
16 complaints, particularly the high profile ones
17 that are in the media too in terms of assaults or
18 someone being shot.

19 So I thought that would give more of a
20 balance not only for this department but all the
21 other departments across the country and also too
22 this was a call from the White House, from the
23 President I believe it was back in early or late
24 December or early January.

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. I

1 assume that we --

2 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: I don't have that
3 information with me, but I will follow up so we
4 can get you that information.

5 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Chief, I just
6 want to say that that would be something the
7 Board would be very interested in. I admit that
8 my reading of the Charter is much more
9 conservative sometimes that my colleagues and I
10 love them to death, but even a conservative
11 reading of the Charter would suggest that the
12 data that this young woman was talking about
13 would be important to everybody so I would
14 appreciate the follow-up.

15 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: Yes, sir.

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: I guess on a
17 national forum the Justice Department is going to
18 start looking at the incidents of where police
19 impact the citizen and where the citizen impacts
20 the police. There's no national bank, they
21 trying to gather that information and therefore
22 they can identify, then you won't have incidents
23 where it becomes a surprise in terms of what the
24 reality of what happening, how many officers are
25 injured in the line of duty, how many impacted,

1 in terms of those lawsuits, the incidents where
2 the volume of -- the amount of money that's been
3 spent.

4 If we can come to grips with the
5 reality of identifying an officer too, that have
6 a bearing. Demeanor leads into other issues as
7 we well know in terms of having an impact on our
8 paycheck and our city's ability to pay, what
9 happened in Inkster and what's going to happen
10 here too.

11 If there is no other audience
12 participation, the announcement is in your
13 handout and our next weekly meeting in the 4th
14 Precinct and also -- and it's there -- we already
15 talked about the Butzel Family Center, so please
16 for the sake of time, you have the dates and the
17 time frame.

18 And at this time in reference to a
19 personnel matter, Mr. Stewart and Mr. Norton, the
20 Chair would entertain a motion --

21 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Before you do that,
22 Mr. Chair, we should read the Open Meetings Act
23 instructions before we go into closed session.

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: We have to read it?

25 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Read it into the

1 record, sir, the reason for going into closed
2 session.

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: I was just going to
4 cite the act without reading it, but --

5 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Mr. Chairman, I
6 think he's got to read it.

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: No problem.

8 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: I know you're
9 trying to save some time, so read fast.

10 SECRETARY ANTHONY: As a public body,
11 your meetings are subject to the Open Meetings
12 Act, the OMA. The OMA defines a meeting as the
13 convening of a public body at which a quorum is
14 present for the purpose of deliberating towards
15 or rendering a decision on a public policy,
16 MCL 5.262(b).

17 The OMA, however, does allow a public
18 body to call a closed session, one limited to the
19 public body and its invitees for specific
20 purposes. Only deliberations may be conducted in
21 closed session. All decisions must be made at a
22 meeting open to the public. While in the closed
23 session the Board makes no decisions, that must
24 be done on the record.

25 At the Board meeting on Thursday, June

1 4, 2015 unless there is an objection the Board is
2 scheduled to go into closed session at the
3 petitioner's request to discuss the rejected
4 applications of Mr. James Stewart and Mr. Joal
5 Norton.

6 The closes session will be called
7 pursuant to MCL 15.268(h) of the Open Meetings
8 Act which states in part a public body may meet
9 in a closed session to consider material exempt
10 from discussion or disclosure by a state or
11 federal statute. A simple majority vote or a
12 quorum of six is required to close a session for
13 this purpose.

14 A motion is in order.

15 COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been proper
16 read. The Chair would entertain a motion.

17 COMMISSIONER MOORE: So moved.

18 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Support.

19 COMMISSIONER BELL: Those is favor,
20 aye?

21 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: Those opposed?
23 Motion carried, we stand adjourned for closed
24 session.

25 (A recess was taken and a closed

1 session was held in another location.
2 Upon reconvening, all commissioners
3 return except Commissioner Vann.).

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: The Chair would
5 entertain a motion to reconvene.

6 COMMISSIONER WHITE: So moved.

7 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Second.

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: Properly moved and
9 second. Ready for the question? Those in favor,
10 aye?

11 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

12 COMMISSIONER BELL: Opposed? Motion
13 carries.

14 MS. BERNARD: Mr. Chairman, I'm
15 recommending that the Board of Police
16 Commissioners and the Personnel Commissioners
17 grant the appeal of Mr. Stewart, James Stewart,
18 to continue in the application process to be a
19 Detroit police officer.

20 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Accept.

21 MS. BERNARD: You have to move it, it's
22 just my recommendation; you can move it.

23 COMMISSIONER BELL: Give me one second.
24 Are we ready now? The Chair would entertain a
25 motion to the effect to accept the attorney's

1 recommendation on this matter.

2 MS. BERNARD: Yes, it is that he be
3 allowed to continue in the process, Mr. Chairman,
4 that he be allowed to continue in the process as
5 an applicant for the police department, he may
6 fail ultimately, but my recommendation is that he
7 be not disqualified and that he be allowed to
8 continue in the process.

9 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Accept.

10 COMMISSIONER BELL: What is the
11 pleasure of the Board?

12 COMMISSIONER BURTON: So moved.

13 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Support.

14 COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been properly
15 moved and supported. Ready for the question?
16 Those in favor, aye?

17 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

18 COMMISSIONER BELL: Those opposed?
19 Motion carried.

20 MS. BERNARD: The second matter, your
21 Honor, related to Joal Robert Norton who I guess
22 is soon changing his name back to his birth name
23 and my recommendation to the Board is that the
24 Board of Police Commissioners grant his appeal
25 and permit Ms. Norton to continue in the

1 application process.

2 He may ultimately fail, but my
3 recommendation is that he be allowed to continue
4 in the application process.

5 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Accept -- so
6 moved.

7 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Support.

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been properly
9 moved and supported. Ready for the question?
10 Those in favor, aye?

11 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

12 COMMISSIONER BELL: Those opposed?

13 COMMISSIONERS: NO.

14 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Mr. Chair, may we
15 have a roll call on this one?

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: We can have a roll
17 call.

18 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Lisa
19 Carter?

20 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Nay.

21 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Willie
22 Burton?

23 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I accept that he
24 should be re-entered into the process.

25 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner

1 Reginald Crawford?

2 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Aye.

3 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Eva
4 Garza Dewaelsche?

5 COMMISSIONER DEWAEELSCHÉ: Nay.

6 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Conrad
7 Mallett?

8 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: No.

9 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner
10 Ricardo R. Moore?

11 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Aye.

12 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner

13 Richard Shelby?

14 COMMISSIONER SHELBY: No.

15 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner

16 Donnell R. White?

17 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Aye.

18 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Willie

19 Bell?

20 COMMISSIONER BELL: Nay.

21 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Mr. Chair, you have
22 five "no" votes, and four "yay" votes; the motion
23 fails.

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: Motion fails.

25 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the

1 Chair, can I motion that we allow -- is it --
2 allow Mr. Foster to come back 12 months from now
3 to the Board ?

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: No, sir that motion
5 would be not be in order.

6 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I think he would
7 be a great asset to the department. Any way we
8 can have a motion to come back 12 months of
9 proving himself, to come back -- I mean, I don't
10 -- as far as permanently disqualifying him, is it
11 possible that we can -- besides that, allow him
12 to come back 12 months from now.

13 I guess that's what I'm -- to re go
14 through the process. Our Board Secretary or
15 attorney, have something like that ever happened
16 before, came before the Board of Commissioner?

17 MS. BERNARD: You can certainly make
18 that recommendation, that he be permitted to
19 reapply within 12 months or 12 months from today,
20 however your --

21 COMMISSIONER BURTON: 12 months from
22 today?

23 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Mr. Chair, he's
24 made the motion, is it your --

25 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Second.

1 SECRETARY ANTHONY: And it seems like
2 there's a second.

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: Is there a second?

4 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Second.

5 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Mr. Chair, I
6 just want to ask a question for clarification. I
7 thought that we voted to -- right, that's what I
8 thought. I thought that Commissioner Burton made
9 a motion to accept a recommendation of Attorney
10 Bernard. That motion was turned down, so the --
11 so what was --

12 COMMISSIONER BURTON: So there's a
13 sub-motion on the floor now.

14 COMMISSIONER BELL: Mr. Burton, right
15 now --

16 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: I'm just trying
17 to get clarification, so that what was then
18 accept then was that Mr. Norton be permanently
19 disqualified. That's what I thought.

20 MS. BERNARD: No, Commissioner Mallett,
21 my recommendation was that you grant his appeal
22 and permit Mr. Norton to continue in the
23 application process essentially immediately.

24 Now --

25 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: And that was

1 defeated. And the recommendation of the
2 department was that he be permanently
3 disqualified?

4 MS. BERNARD: That is correct.

5 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: So then can we
6 -- again this is a procedural question -- but can
7 we then vote to set aside their permanent
8 disqualification?

9 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Yes.

10 MS. BERNARD: Yes.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay, we have a
12 procedural question I guess and entertain -- this
13 motion got a second?

14 SECRETARY ANTHONY: It did, sir,
15 Commissioner Moore.

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: Motion is on the
17 floor has been properly moved and second. Those
18 in favor aye?

19 COMMISSIONER WHITE: You have to wait
20 for commentary on the motion.

21 COMMISSIONER BELL: Question on the
22 motion, yes, sir.

23 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Not a question on
24 the motion but I'd like to speak to the motion.
25 There has been past practice where this body has

1 voted in the affirmative to allow a candidate to
2 reapply to this body date specific, 12 months, 24
3 month period, five month period, whatever was the
4 pleasure of this body, if it was in question that
5 the candidate's past history may have been called
6 to question.

7 This was a period where they could show
8 themselves approved to the department by having a
9 sound record, maintaining certain good standing
10 and come back and reapply at a date specific
11 time, so that has been done in the past.

12 And if I'm hearing our counsel
13 appropriately that can be done opposite of a vote
14 that we just took. And I think this may be the
15 first time I've been in it where we've done it in
16 the reverse. Usually if that were the posture of
17 this body we would take that motion before we
18 kind of voted down the candidate, but I don't
19 know that one precludes the other. Thank you.

20 COMMISSIONER BELL: Any other
21 questions or comments on the motion? Those in
22 favor, aye?

23 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: Those opposed?

25 COMMISSIONERS: Nay.

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Roll call, please.

2 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Lisa

3 Carter?

4 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Nay.

5 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Willie

6 E. Burton?

7 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Aye.

8 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner

9 Reginald Crawford?

10 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Nay.

11 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Eva

12 Garza Dewaelsche?

13 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Nay.

14 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Conrad

15 Mallett?

16 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: No.

17 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner

18 Ricardo R. Moore?

19 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Aye.

20 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner

21 Richard Shelby?

22 COMMISSIONER SHELBY: Nay.

23 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner

24 Donnell White?

25 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Aye.

1 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Willie
2 Bell?

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: Nay.

4 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Mr. Chair, you have
5 six "no"s and three "yay"s, the motion is
6 defeated.

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: Motion failed. The
8 Chair would entertain a motion to adjourn.

9 COMMISSIONER SHELBY: So moved.

10 COMMISSIONER WHITE: So moved.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: Properly moved and
12 seconded. Ready for the question? Those in
13 favor, aye?

14 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

15 COMMISSIONER BELL: Opposed? Motion
16 carries. Thank you for your attendance and your
17 input.

18 (Proceedings concluded at
19 5:23 p.m.)

20
21
22
23
24
25

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

STATE OF MICHIGAN)
) SS
COUNTY OF WAYNE)

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I reported
stenographically the foregoing proceedings and
testimony under oath at the time and place
hereinbefore set forth; that thereafter the same
was reduced to computer transcription and that
this is a full, true, complete and correct
transcription of said proceedings.

DALE E. ROSE



DALE E. ROSE,
CSR-0087

A		
ability 25:17 37:16 59:8	administration 8:16	3:21,22 4:4,8 4:11,14,18 5:9
able 10:8 14:7 20:9 21:21 22:15 24:13 28:13 29:23 35:10	administrative 5:14	5:11 36:11 59:21,25 60:10 64:14,18,21,25 65:3,6,9,12,15 65:18,21 66:23 67:1 68:14 70:2,5,8,11,14 70:17,20,23 71:1,4
absolutely 25:23 25:25 28:10	admit 58:7	anticipate 24:25 25:2
AC 42:2 51:12	adult 30:10 52:25	anybody 42:16,17
academy 17:16	Advisor 41:15	anyway 34:21
accept 62:20,25 63:9 64:5,23 67:9,18	advocating 54:20	app 37:9,11,18
access 56:8	Affairs 39:22	appeal 62:17 63:24 67:21
accolades 10:6	affirmative 69:1	appear 38:11
accompanied 30:10	afraid 51:21	applicant 63:5
accountability 28:2 39:23 50:12 55:18	afternoon 1:10 3:4,8 6:21 17:24	application 62:18 64:1,4 67:23
accountable 50:11,23	age 31:2 50:13 53:20	applications 61:4
achieve 10:19	agency 43:11	Appointed 2:6,12 2:13
achievement 10:22	agenda 5:21 11:5	appreciate 43:1 43:19,22 49:2 58:14
acknowledge 36:10 43:16	aggravated 18:13	appropriate 26:13 27:18 52:17
acknowledgment 12:24	ago 18:7 19:17 36:10,14,22 39:1	appropriately 69:13
acknowledgments 12:25	agree 36:8 45:14 53:6	approval 5:20 6:5
ACLU 37:9,18,18	air 32:22	approved 43:11 69:8
act 35:21 46:7,9 59:22 60:4,12 61:8	Alan 5:15	approximately 22:14
actions 21:14	Alexis 8:9 54:25	area 11:24 21:1 21:10 22:22 23:16 24:22 32:22,25 44:19 49:24
activist 43:24	allegations 11:24 12:5,19 13:7,8	areas 12:9
activities 9:18 25:2 29:24	alleged 11:19	arrive 6:17
activity 31:11 37:12,17 52:6	allow 14:16 60:17 66:1,2 66:11 69:1	arrives 32:13 33:11
actual 31:24	allowed 63:3,4,7 64:3	article 10:15
addition 56:23	altercation 33:10	aside 68:7
additional 21:20 32:5	ambassador 48:13 48:14	
address 44:20 54:22	ambassador-type 54:11	
adjourn 71:8	amount 38:3,4,6 45:25 59:2	
adjourned 61:23	and/or 13:4 55:16	
	ankle 33:7	
	announcement 59:12	
	answers 54:15	
	Anthony 2:3 3:20	
		asked 4:15 14:18 16:15 21:20,22 23:25 24:7 36:22 38:9 57:7
		asking 12:20 24:13 25:11,13 25:14 31:13
		asleep 47:10
		aspect 46:25 54:14
		assaults 18:14 21:15 24:5 57:10,17
		assess 24:21,22
		asset 17:2 66:7
		assets 16:16
		assistant 5:15 26:3 39:1 40:18 41:2
		assistants 20:6
		associations 32:10
		assume 8:24,25 58:1
		attend 7:13 24:23
		attendance 7:1 36:14 71:16
		attended 8:8 17:5 29:1
		attending 28:22
		attention 32:3 42:10
		attest 40:1
		attorney 5:13 37:23 38:9 66:15 67:9
		attorney's 62:25
		audience 51:15 59:11
		available 14:2 38:19,20
		aware 55:24
		awareness 32:7 34:19
		aye 6:2,3,12,13 61:20,21 62:10 62:11 63:16,17 64:10,11 65:2 65:11,17 68:18 69:22,23 70:7

70:19,25 71:13 71:14	58:16 59:24 60:3,7 61:15 61:19,22 62:4 62:8,12,23 63:10,14,18 64:8,12,16 65:19,20,24 66:4 67:3,14 68:11,16,21 69:20,24 70:1 71:2,3,7,11,15	26:8,11 27:22 28:6 33:18 37:8,14 39:12 39:17,23 40:4 42:4 45:23 46:2 60:10,13 60:18,19 61:8 68:25 69:2,4 69:17	calendars 49:22 call 3:10,20 4:19 29:13 57:22 60:18 64:15,17 70:1 called 33:2 37:9 61:6 69:5 cam 39:12 45:23 46:2 cameras 14:6 39:24 40:4 campaign 19:6 32:7 cams 37:8,14 39:17 candidate 69:1 69:18 candidate's 69:5 Canfield 44:19 capacity 20:10 car 47:11 card 8:14 care 22:20 careful 45:6 carjacking 18:7 23:13 Carr 10:1 carried 61:23 63:19 carries 6:5,15 62:13 71:16 cars 44:5,10 Carter 2:5 3:24 7:4,5 33:11 36:9 64:19,20 70:3,4 carts 44:16 case 28:5 30:22 47:20 cases 11:13,16 11:16,16,18,23 12:4,10 cause 30:16 CCRs 12:4 Celia 41:14 cell 37:11 40:6 Center 49:12 59:15 centers 32:6 50:1 certain 21:10 36:1 47:20
<hr/> B <hr/>	Belle 34:7,8 35:8,12,14,15 35:19 belongs 44:7 belt 21:20 Bernard 5:13 37:23,23 62:14 62:21 63:2,20 66:17 67:10,20 68:4,10 Bernice 43:23 51:15 best 21:12 22:11 better 8:15 18:17 33:15 Bettison 49:3,3 49:18 51:5 Beyond 27:2 bicycles 46:13 big 15:20 birth 63:22 Bishop 2:8 4:16 36:21 bit 8:22 15:8 42:5 55:25 board 1:8 3:6,19 3:23 5:10,14 8:5 15:6,9,12 16:10 18:23 25:10 26:24 27:22 28:4 29:16 34:24 37:24 38:11 40:20 58:7 60:23,25 61:1 62:15 63:11,23 63:24 66:3,14 66:16 Board's 16:10 42:9 body 14:6 25:10	born 54:1 Boulevard 51:23 bow 3:16 boys 7:13,16 Brian 7:6 bridge 28:1 brief 7:3,22 43:22 briefed 9:9 briefing 9:10 bring 7:24 18:4 30:21,23,23,24 42:9 broadly 26:12 broke 52:1 Brown 5:14 brutality 37:4 Building 3:9 Burton 2:10 3:25 6:16,20,23 23:18 24:15 25:8 27:13 28:1 40:15 41:9 62:20 63:9,12 64:5 64:22,23 65:25 66:6,21 67:8 67:12,14 68:9 70:6,7 buses 32:22 business 5:20 7:2 8:25 36:17 36:18,20 43:10 bussing 50:3 busy 4:25 Butch 38:8 Butzel 49:12,24 59:15 bystander 24:4 bystanders 21:17	<hr/> C <hr/>
back 10:8,24 19:12 20:8,10 27:24 28:6 39:7 41:7 43:13 49:4 53:20 57:3,6 57:23 63:22 66:2,8,9,12 69:10 badge 14:18 badges 13:19 balance 57:20 bank 58:20 Baptist 7:14 based 24:1,20,24 26:21 43:5 basically 16:13 27:16 29:21 50:5 basis 21:3,3 bastion 47:14 bearing 59:6 beginning 40:10 behalf 52:6 behave 36:1 50:16 behavior 46:4 51:2 believe 13:5 36:22 42:1 57:23 Bell 2:4 3:4,7 3:18 4:22 5:8 5:19,25 6:4,10 6:14,18,25 7:8 7:12 12:16 14:3,24 15:13 15:24 17:4,15 17:20 25:20 27:12 28:7 29:9 31:15 33:16 36:8,13 37:21 38:21 40:21,25 41:12 42:20,25 43:9 45:18 49:1,18 51:9 53:6,12 54:18 57:25			

69:9
certainly 14:20
 16:21 27:4
 66:17
CERTIFICATE 72:1
CERTIFY 72:8
Chair 3:7,16,22
 6:6,22,24 11:4
 12:18 13:3
 18:20 20:17
 23:18 25:13,15
 28:10 29:8
 31:17 36:20
 38:15 39:11
 40:16 41:10
 56:25 57:6
 59:20,22 61:16
 62:4,24 64:14
 65:21 66:1,23
 67:5 71:4,8
Chairman 5:23
 25:23 26:16
 27:8 38:24
 51:19,21 52:13
 52:23 53:3
 60:5 62:14
 63:3
Chairman's 47:17
Chairperson 2:4
Chair's 7:3
challenging
 45:25
chance 10:17
 18:21 19:20
 22:11 40:9
changed 13:14
 32:17 33:13
 35:11,12 38:18
changing 63:22
charge 23:24
 38:10
Charter 58:8,11
Chief 2:22,24
 3:12,15 4:23
 5:5,7,12 7:7,9
 8:9 9:1,11
 10:25 11:3,15
 12:18 13:4,12
 14:3,4,15 15:5
 15:16,25 16:1
 16:7,11 17:13
 17:17,19,21,23

20:18,21 22:1
 22:13 23:5,19
 23:22,25 24:18
 26:3 27:14
 30:2,12 31:17
 32:20 35:5,6
 38:15,22 39:1
 39:6,14 40:13
 40:18,18,23
 41:2 43:24
 44:22 46:5
 52:20 55:24
 56:25 58:2,5
 58:15
Chief's 57:2
children 30:20
 30:23,23 52:21
choir 52:15
church 7:14 16:4
 43:25
churches 32:10
CIA 42:22
citations 55:15
cite 60:4
citizen 11:7
 14:13 26:10
 58:19,19
citizens 13:16
 13:17 14:12,23
 19:9 22:17
 31:10 37:10,15
 39:18 46:1,2
 56:9
city 5:2 8:10,16
 9:6,16,19
 10:14 18:16,24
 20:20 21:19
 22:20,22 25:19
 26:5,20,24,25
 28:17 30:17
 32:5 34:5,15
 35:18 36:21
 37:2 42:18
 45:8,10 46:25
 51:19
city's 59:8
city-wide 23:23
 24:7 31:22
clarification
 67:6,17
clarity 21:24
class 16:2,6,9

16:14,15,25
 17:1 47:22
clear 25:10
 42:16
Clerk 8:7
Cliff 8:22
close 33:17
 42:23 51:18
 61:12
closed 11:16
 12:3,4,4,10
 42:11,13 43:1
 43:13 59:23
 60:1,18,21,22
 61:2,9,23,25
closely 49:8
closes 61:6
cloud-based
 41:21
Code 56:5
cohesion 18:24
colleagues 58:9
collectively
 21:1
college 10:2
color 35:24
come 3:13 11:4
 20:8 21:8
 28:11 30:8
 33:21,24 43:13
 43:18,19 45:7
 48:16 52:10
 56:13 59:4
 66:2,8,9,12
 69:10
comes 28:5
comfortable
 34:23 43:7
coming 13:17
 19:3,6,24
 27:24 45:9
Comm 49:3,18
 51:5
commander 18:2
 39:22 49:3
comment 51:11
commentary 68:20
commenting 44:23
comments 31:23
 41:15 43:16
 48:24 52:3
 69:21

commission 8:24
 17:16 25:9,17
 52:9
commissioner 2:6
 2:7,8,9,10,11
 2:12,13 3:4,18
 3:24,25 4:2,3
 4:4,5,7,8,10
 4:11,13,14,16
 4:17,18,22 5:8
 5:19,22,24,25
 6:4,8,9,10,14
 6:18,19,20,21
 6:23,25 7:4,8
 7:12 12:16,17
 14:3,24 15:1
 15:13,24 16:8
 17:4,4,9,15,20
 20:17 21:23
 23:2,17,18
 24:15 25:8,12
 25:20,22 27:12
 28:1,7,8,9
 29:9,11 30:6
 30:13 31:15,15
 31:16 32:13
 33:11,16 36:8
 36:9,11,13,19
 37:21 38:13,21
 38:22,24 39:9
 39:11 40:11,15
 40:21,25 41:9
 41:12 42:20,25
 43:9 45:18
 48:16 49:1,18
 51:9,10 53:6
 53:10,12 54:18
 54:19 57:5,25
 58:5,16 59:24
 60:3,5,7,8
 61:15,17,18,19
 61:22 62:3,4,6
 62:7,8,12,20
 62:23 63:9,10
 63:12,13,14,18
 64:5,7,8,12,16
 64:18,20,21,23
 64:25 65:2,3,5
 65:6,8,9,11,12
 65:14,15,17,18
 65:20,24,25
 66:4,6,16,21

66:25 67:3, 4, 5	concern 9:12, 13	conveyed 52:5	criminality
67:8, 12, 14, 16	11:25 12:9	cooperate 45:15	47:14
67:20, 25 68:5	26:17 32:14	coordinated 22:5	criminalize 31:5
68:9, 11, 15, 16	concerned 29:21	22:8	33:4
68:19, 21, 23	54:21	copy 45:13	cross 51:23
69:20, 24 70:1	concerns 15:25	corporals 19:15	crowd 7:23
70:2, 4, 5, 7, 8	29:5 30:3	corporation 38:1	CSR-0087 72:19
70:10, 11, 13, 14	31:22 35:2	38:7	culturally 46:23
70:16, 17, 19, 20	37:21	corral 50:19	culture 47:24, 25
70:22, 23, 25	concluded 71:18	corralling 32:16	curb 44:6, 13
71:1, 3, 7, 9, 10	concludes 12:14	correct 44:20	curfew 8:24
71:11, 15	conditioned	46:3 68:4	23:20, 23 24:8
commissioners	32:23	72:13	27:1, 25 28:14
1:8 2:1 3:6	conducive 35:22	corrected 27:4	28:17, 19 29:17
4:20 5:10 6:3	conduct 3:20	cost 37:3 41:11	31:21, 24 42:7
6:13, 16 12:16	33:9 35:21	costs 36:21 37:1	45:4, 14
26:7, 25 27:23	conducted 60:20	38:2	currently 11:8
30:4 34:25	conference 34:12	Council 9:6	55:14
43:24 49:22	conflict 48:19	26:20, 24, 25	
61:21 62:2, 11	confronted 46:15	27:21 28:12	D
62:16, 16 63:17	congratulations	33:22 42:18	Dale 5:16 72:18
63:24 64:11, 13	12:24	54:21	darn 42:23
69:23, 25 71:14	congregate 20:24	Councilman 7:25	data 38:11, 12
commitment 10:10	connected 52:9	8:22 43:2	41:11, 16 55:1
committing 48:6	connotation 22:3	councilpeople	55:5, 13 56:6, 7
communications	Conrad 2:13 4:6	33:25	56:16, 21 57:9
16:1	65:6 70:14	counsel 38:1, 5	57:11 58:12
communities	conservancy 47:6	69:12	date 11:14 18:10
55:11, 12 56:4	conservative	counsel's 38:7	56:8 69:2, 10
community 8:5	58:9, 10	country 57:21	dates 59:16
16:16, 19, 20, 23	consider 61:9	County 8:7, 7	Davis-Drake 3:13
19:11, 13, 21	consideration	72:6	3:15 5:12 11:1
28:3 31:25	47:18 48:5, 11	couple 29:2, 4	11:3 13:12
32:10, 11 43:4	48:25	36:22 41:15, 21	14:15 15:5, 16
48:14 52:9	consistent 15:12	53:1	16:7 17:13, 19
55:19 56:11	construed 15:23	course 37:15	day 29:7 47:10
competitive	contact 14:13	39:18	days 10:24 19:25
10:24	15:14, 22 21:8	Court 5:16	20:19, 20 21:24
complaint 11:7	contingency 23:3	cover 24:23	22:8, 12 23:20
26:10 43:25	continue 16:22	Craig 4:24 16:1	24:14, 16, 19
44:4, 14	18:18 19:22	55:24	28:20, 20 30:21
complaints 11:9	50:9 62:18	Crawford 2:9 4:2	30:24 40:14
11:10, 17, 20	63:3, 4, 8, 25	4:3 28:8, 9	DC 42:6
12:3 15:2 40:1	64:3 67:22	36:19 38:3, 13	deacon 7:18
56:17 57:16	continues 20:4	38:23 57:5	deal 7:24 9:12
complete 72:13	control 22:21	65:1, 2 70:9, 10	9:13, 15 21:14
completes 4:19	45:13, 14 51:1	credit 8:14	23:1, 10, 14
5:18	controlled 51:25	crime 18:16	34:23
comprised 55:10	convening 60:13	23:10, 15	dealing 7:19
56:6	conversation	crimes 18:6	22:3 52:7
computer 72:12	53:18	criminal 18:14	death 58:10
concept 29:17	convey 48:1	31:11	debate 29:25

34:4 43:14
debriefing 25:5
December 57:24
decided 33:8
decision 18:23
 29:15 41:22
 42:3,21 43:5
 43:14 60:15
decisions 26:4
 60:21,23
decline 12:21
declined 11:13
decrease 11:11
 11:13 18:8,9
decreased 56:19
decreasing 56:17
defeated 68:1
 71:6
defines 60:12
definitely 13:13
 56:1,14,23
delegate 34:20
deliberating
 60:14
deliberations
 60:20
delicate 42:10
delivered 40:20
demeanor 11:25
 12:11 15:2
 16:22 59:6
demographics
 55:16
department 12:25
 13:5,22 14:21
 14:23 17:2
 18:22 19:3,7
 20:1,4,9,15
 25:13,16,24
 26:4,12,19
 27:6 28:2,4
 29:5 38:17
 39:2,20 45:12
 45:16 49:7
 52:7,18 55:18
 55:23 57:20
 58:17 63:5
 66:7 68:2 69:8
departments
 56:10 57:21
depict 40:4
Deputy 2:24 5:5

5:7 7:7,9 9:1
 9:11 14:3,4
 17:21,23 20:18
 20:21 22:1,13
 23:5,22 24:18
 27:14 30:2,12
 31:17 32:20
 35:6 38:15,21
 39:6,14 40:13
 40:18,23 46:5
 56:25 58:2,15
deserve 20:12
desire 31:4
detail 15:8
detective 7:6,7
 7:8,11
detention 32:24
determination
 41:16,24
determine 26:19
 27:6
Detroit 1:8,16
 1:18 3:1 5:3
 8:10,17 9:6,16
 9:19 10:14
 18:22,25 19:1
 20:14,22 25:19
 26:6,20 28:17
 28:18,22 34:5
 34:9 36:21
 37:2 46:20
 47:1 49:7
 51:20 53:22
 55:2,9 56:3,13
 62:19
Detroit's 32:4
developing 26:15
Dewaelsche 2:12
 4:5 17:5 32:13
 36:12 65:4,5
 70:12,13
dialog 17:17
 25:21 27:18,21
 29:25 33:17,18
 53:18 54:16
different 9:4
 14:11 21:5,9
 22:2,4 29:19
 35:15 55:15,15
 56:11,18
differently 13:2
 25:7

diligent 14:5
diligently 13:15
direction 18:11
directly 37:18
Director 18:1
disclosure 61:10
discriminate
 31:6
discuss 61:3
discussed 42:11
discussion 9:2
 20:3 26:3
 27:16 33:19
 34:22 42:6,7
 45:1 61:10
discussions
 34:13,18
disenfranchise
 31:5
disingenuous
 46:11
displayed 14:10
disqualification
 68:8
disqualified
 63:7 67:19
 68:3
disqualifying
 66:10
disrespectful
 46:11
Dist 2:5,7,8,9
 2:10,11
District 3:8
disturbing 44:18
diverse 16:15
Division 8:12
DNR 46:8,10
 47:24
documented 14:14
doing 13:1,2
 14:11,21 18:15
 19:4 20:14,18
 20:20 21:4
 26:12 44:6,25
 49:8 51:4
 52:22
Donnell 2:6 4:19
 6:19 48:15
 65:16 70:24
door 44:5
doors 43:2

downloaded 37:18
downtown 23:12
 24:6 33:24
 34:6,6,15
 46:20
downward 13:11
DPD 5:2 13:22
 17:6,8,25 18:4
 19:4
Drake 39:25
drive 18:19
 35:14
Driven 55:2
driveway 44:6
driving 18:16
drop 49:23
dropout 51:19
drugs 10:7
Dushane 18:2
duties 16:11
duty 21:18 35:25
 58:25
Dyke 49:25
dynamics 19:14

E

E 2:10 3:25 70:6
 72:18
earlier 18:20
 56:17
early 57:23,24
east 35:19
Eastland 50:25
Ebenezer 16:3
Edgar 2:8 4:16
Edgewater 30:25
effect 6:7 33:3
 48:23 62:25
effort 22:5,8
efforts 13:23
either 13:4
elected 8:4
elementary 19:9
emergency 31:19
empower 54:14
encourage 36:7
 54:10
encouraging
 30:19 31:4
 35:1
enforce 28:23,24
enforcement 36:2

48:7
engage 31:11
 32:9 50:6,7
 53:7
engaged 56:9
engaging 54:20
enjoy 29:24 32:8
 51:2
enjoying 39:17
 39:19
ensure 14:12
 18:15
ensuring 14:9
 31:8
entertain 6:7
 20:15 43:12
 59:20 61:16
 62:5,24 68:12
 71:8
entire 40:9
entirety 40:3
entities 22:5
entity 8:3
environment 32:1
equally 24:14
especially 7:16
 15:18 34:4
 53:19
essentially
 55:11 67:23
Eva 2:12 4:4
 65:3 70:11
evaluate 27:11
event 21:6 30:9
 30:22
events 20:2
 24:21 30:17
 32:8
everybody 52:23
 58:13
everybody's 49:5
exact 49:14
exactly 30:12
 52:21
excellent 7:15
 7:18,21 8:1,6
 10:15 17:16
exchange 17:10
Excuse 25:12
excused 4:15
exempt 61:9
exonerated 12:7

expect 54:5
experience 17:6
 17:8 19:20
 21:12 22:10,12
 25:6 29:1
experiencing
 18:5,8 20:5
experts 21:14
explain 25:15
extend 3:5
e-mail 29:12

F

facilitate 21:21
facility 32:24
fact 42:15 45:9
 46:10 47:9
factor 47:21,22
factors 12:22
fail 63:6 64:2
failed 71:7
fails 65:23,24
fair 22:22
familiar 55:4
family 17:9
 30:22 49:12
 59:15
fantastic 10:12
far 39:12 44:20
 48:1 66:10
Farmer 54:24,25
 57:4
fast 60:9
favor 6:2,12
 61:19 62:9
 63:16 64:10
 68:18 69:22
 71:13
favorable 16:18
favorably 14:22
feature 9:24
 10:5
federal 61:11
feed 19:8,8
feel 22:17 34:6
 34:22 47:10
feels 45:4
feet 29:4
fellowship 7:17
 7:24
field 10:15
fighting 23:8

fight 25:1
figures 36:24
filed 11:16,18
 11:23
finally 13:10
 48:12
Finasee 18:2
find 14:1,2 37:4
findings 12:6
finished 35:5
fired 29:3
fireworks 19:24
 19:25 22:9
 23:21,22 24:7
 24:12,16 28:21
 29:2,18 30:20
 30:24 46:18
first 12:20
 17:23 40:16
 69:15
five 45:20 65:22
 69:3
floor 17:22
 67:13 68:17
flyers 49:5,13
focusing 21:4
folks 51:7
follow 42:6 49:4
 58:3
following 26:13
follows 12:6,11
follow-up 58:14
football 10:7,21
force 12:1,12
 30:7 55:15
forces 39:3
foregoing 72:9
foreseeability
 22:24
forget 21:13
format 8:13,19
former 17:9
 20:22
forth 13:17
 72:11
forthcoming
 38:23
forum 5:3 7:13
 7:15,18 8:1
 27:20 58:17
forums 34:14
 50:6

forward 3:13
 9:21 20:4
 27:20 31:25
 32:10,18 41:4
 43:18,19 50:4
Foster 66:2
found 45:9
Fountain 7:6,21
 49:19
four 20:19 65:22
four-day 8:24
 27:25
four-part 38:2
frame 29:25
 49:23 59:17
free 34:22 36:4
 36:4
freedom 29:24
Friday 16:6
 49:20 52:10
friend 46:6
front 24:19 53:5
full 40:8 72:13
full-fledged
 52:25
fun 30:22
functions 16:10

G

Gail 18:1
gang 20:23 24:6
 51:13,24
Garza 2:12 4:5
 65:4 70:12
gather 58:21
gearing 20:1
gender 55:16
George 2:3 3:19
 3:22
getting 20:7
 41:5 45:24
 56:1
Ghost 10:12
girl 33:7
give 5:5 43:15
 43:20,21 44:2
 44:19 46:3
 48:10 57:19
 62:23
given 3:17 48:19
gives 19:20
gloves 50:20

go 16:19 18:21
 19:7,9,16,18
 22:6 27:14
 35:10,17,18
 39:7,13 41:7
 47:5 51:21
 59:23 61:2
 66:13
goes 20:23 47:3
going 3:10,12,19
 9:6 16:2,16,19
 17:1 21:1,6,10
 23:3,15 24:22
 24:23 25:5,6
 26:16,21 27:7
 27:20 28:12,13
 28:23 29:10,22
 30:6 32:10,18
 33:20 34:3,20
 35:17 36:16
 39:15,16 41:10
 43:13 45:10,13
 45:17 46:4
 49:11,12,20
 52:6,12 53:20
 53:23 57:14
 58:17 59:9
 60:1,3
gold 10:3,20
good 3:4 5:1
 6:19,21 9:16
 11:4 13:10
 14:20 16:25
 17:10,23 18:25
 33:17 36:14
 45:10 46:6
 69:9
go-around 17:10
graduate 16:3
grandchildren
 29:3
grandmother 44:8
 44:9 53:22
grandson 44:9
grant 28:13
 62:17 63:24
 67:21
granted 24:9
grateful 27:4
Gratiot 53:25
 54:1
Gray 10:11

great 3:8 7:24
 9:12,13,14
 16:15,25 20:5
 54:16 56:23
 66:7
grips 59:4
group 31:5 35:17
 48:17 53:20
 54:11
guess 33:17 57:7
 57:11 58:16
 63:21 66:13
 68:12
gunfire 33:9
gymnasium 33:3

H

half 39:1 42:12
Hall 2:24 5:6,7
 7:7,9 14:4
 17:21,23 20:21
 22:1 23:5,22
 24:18 30:12
 32:20 35:6
 38:15 39:6,14
 40:13,18,23
 42:6 46:5
 56:25 58:2,15
hand 27:17
handle 32:18
handling 45:7
handout 59:13
hands 26:2
hang 50:14
hanging 46:21
Hanson 5:16
happen 34:21
 55:23 59:9
happened 14:7,8
 47:11 55:21
 59:9 66:15
happening 13:24
 34:5 58:24
happens 25:4
hard 35:7 38:12
harm 33:4 39:25
HEADQUARTERS
 1:16
heads 3:16
hear 10:25 13:4
 28:8 33:20
 55:2 57:15

heard 8:8
hearing 8:18 9:7
 9:8 26:20
 29:13 69:12
held 50:22 62:1
Helen 51:17
hell 52:1
Hello 54:24
help 31:14
helping 26:18
 27:5
Henry 10:1
hereinbefore
 72:11
heroes 10:13
hesitancy 56:1
high 9:25 10:2
 10:22 19:10
 51:18,20 57:16
history 69:5
holistic 32:11
homeless 19:8
homicides 18:14
Honor 63:21
hope 10:9 33:21
 45:15 56:13
hopefully 8:15
 50:1,9,15
 53:15
hoping 49:21
 55:20
horizon 19:25
hospital 54:6
hospitals 53:13
hours 32:5 42:12
house 44:7 55:6
 55:7 57:22
huge 49:21
hundred 23:8
 29:4
hundreds 21:7
husband 7:4

I

idea 27:23 41:10
ideas 54:15
identify 10:19
 58:22
identifying 59:5
ignore 34:11
immediate 4:23
immediately

67:23
impact 27:19
 29:22 50:8
 58:19 59:7
impacted 31:20
 58:25
impacting 7:16
 9:5
impacts 9:15
 58:19
implement 25:18
 55:8
implication 52:2
importance 16:17
important 51:16
 58:13
impose 26:25
imposing 28:16
incident 18:6
incidents 53:12
 58:18,22 59:1
included 11:19
increase 55:17
increased 32:3,4
individual 30:11
 46:24
individuals
 13:15 20:24
 21:7 29:14
 30:16 31:6,20
 46:14,16
indulge 42:5
information
 26:23 39:7
 41:8 42:17,21
 56:22 57:2
 58:3,4,21
initiative 55:5
 56:12
injured 58:25
injury 52:24
Inkster 37:3
 59:9
innocent 21:17
 33:6
input 43:4 71:17
inquiring 29:12
inside 3:9 25:19
institutions
 51:16
instructions
 59:23

insurance 8:10	29:20 30:14	13:18,23 20:22	life 10:8,16
intel 20:22,23	33:20 34:2,8	22:18 27:19	53:25
22:7 25:9 27:9	35:23 38:1	28:4,19 29:7	limit 31:23
27:15 28:3,25	41:12 48:3,8	31:17 34:1	limited 22:13
29:1 30:1	50:21 55:25	35:18,20 36:25	60:18
42:11 43:6	issues 5:4 7:15	37:6,14 41:20	Linda 5:13 37:23
intelligence	7:19,24 8:16	42:16 43:2,11	line 58:25
25:24	19:1 29:14	44:8 45:8,22	Lisa 2:5 3:24
intelligent 17:1	34:10,11 35:2	46:7,9 47:11	7:4 64:18 70:2
intent 31:21	42:10 50:20,24	48:15 50:3,13	listed 56:22
33:4	54:22 59:6	50:15 51:11,20	listened 8:21
interact 19:10	item 5:20 6:5	52:8,14 53:3,8	litigation 36:21
34:3	7:2 35:4 36:17	54:13,21 55:20	37:1 38:2,10
interacting		55:24 56:20,24	48:9
14:12,22	J	57:15 59:7	little 8:22 15:8
interaction	Jack 18:1	60:8 69:19	42:5 55:25
15:18,21 16:5	James 61:4 62:17	knowing 56:10	live 21:9 36:3
16:8,14,18	January 57:6,24	known 10:11	lived 51:25
46:1 50:2,5	Jay 46:18	11:20	located 49:24
interested 58:7	Jessica 4:15		location 62:1
intern 55:7	Joal 61:4 63:21	L	lockup 48:23
Internal 39:22	job 7:22 26:12	lack 30:18	lodged 40:2
interning 55:1	32:4 44:22	lacking 50:18	long 16:21 44:11
intervene 48:18	John 53:13	ladies 36:15	longer 40:11
introduce 5:9	June 1:12 3:2	lady 4:24 44:21	look 15:7 31:25
17:25	5:21 8:2 16:3	57:9	32:2 34:4,7
introductions	60:25	Lansing 4:24,25	35:7 47:16,22
5:18	jurisdiction	5:1	47:24 48:3,5
Inv 3:15 11:3	52:1	lastly 32:14	looking 12:18
13:12 14:15	Justice 37:10	late 3:25 4:1,5	30:1 41:4 49:9
15:5,16 16:7	58:17	44:18 57:23	50:4 58:18
17:13,19 49:19		launched 37:9	loose 52:1
investigative	K	55:6	lot 13:17 51:11
13:14	keep 21:19 32:21	law 36:2 38:17	53:15
investigator	43:21 45:10	Lawson 53:17,17	love 19:19 54:16
3:13 5:12 7:5	keeping 23:11,12	lawsuits 37:3	58:10
7:5,10,10,11	33:5,6	38:17 59:1	lows 18:5
11:1,15 15:25	Keith 45:1	leading 11:20,24	
16:12 17:17	Kercheval 49:25	12:9 13:6	M
invitees 60:19	keynote 7:25	leads 59:6	Mackinaw 4:25
INVOCATION 3:17	kicked 49:14	leave 20:2 48:24	18:21 34:12
involved 11:20	kicking 54:17	led 46:12	44:24
11:24 12:5	kid 50:20	left 4:23 6:20	magnitude 22:2
14:8 25:1 47:4	kids 9:16 23:8	leg 24:4	Magoo 46:20
Isiah 53:17	44:16 50:10,18	Legal 41:15	Maharris 35:20
island 46:15,17	51:21	legally 37:12	maintaining 69:9
47:1,5,13	kind 13:9 14:14	legend 10:1	major 30:17
Isle 34:7 35:8	46:4 47:13	level 48:22	majority 61:11
35:12,14,15,19	69:18	leverage 55:21	making 13:25
issue 8:20 9:8	kinds 21:11	license 35:9	14:21 16:18
9:13,21 25:21	know 5:4 7:12,17	44:11	29:6 43:15
27:17 28:23	11:5 13:8,16	lieutenant 23:24	52:17 53:4

males 24:3	metals 10:3	71:5,7,8,15	52:10,11
Mallet 4:6	meters 8:13 10:3	motor 44:15	nonsense 36:5
Mallett 2:13 4:7	Michigan 1:18	move 9:21 62:21	non-fatal 18:12
5:22 6:9 25:12	3:1 4:24 37:10	62:22	non-lockup 48:23
25:22 38:24	55:1 72:4	moved 5:22 6:1,8	non-uniform 15:4
39:9 51:10	microphones	6:11 61:17	norm 11:12
53:10 58:5	39:24	62:6,8 63:12	Norman 8:12
60:5,8 61:18	mics 14:6	63:15 64:6,9	Northland 50:25
63:13 65:7,8	midtown 34:15	68:17 71:9,10	Northwestern
67:5,16,20,25	mine 46:6	71:11	9:25 10:22
68:5 70:15,16	minimize 48:18	multi-jurisdi...	Norton 59:19
man 9:24	minute 36:16	39:3	61:5 63:21,25
manage 27:7	minutes 6:6		67:18,22
34:20	36:10,13 41:1		note 10:25 33:16
managing 26:10	41:7	N	35:4
manner 26:13	mix 53:1	name 5:5 43:20	notes 17:11
35:21 36:2	Mobile 37:9	46:19 54:25	noticing 14:17
Manta 56:5	mobility 48:22	63:22,22	no"s 71:5
map 49:5	money 38:4,5,6	names 13:18	number 11:13
material 61:9	59:2	14:10,18	13:10 24:24,25
matter 21:13	month 11:8,9,17	national 58:17	44:2 50:18
42:15 47:12	38:25 39:1	58:20	numbers 14:19
59:19 63:1,20	69:3,3	nature 9:14	24:19,20 36:23
mayhem 54:6	monthly 11:2	15:14	38:16
Mayor 54:21	months 11:12	Nay 64:20 65:5	
ma'am 15:1 37:22	66:2,8,12,19	65:20 69:25	O
41:13 54:23	66:19,21 69:2	70:4,10,13,22	
MCL 60:16 61:7	Moore 2:11 4:9	71:3	oath 72:10
mean 53:24 54:5	4:10 5:24 6:8	nearly 18:16	objection 61:1
54:13 66:9	20:17 21:23	necessarily	observations
meant 52:4	23:2,17 39:11	35:23 40:2	17:11
media 20:24	40:11 51:17,17	necessary 23:1	obviously 15:21
29:20 36:25	61:17 62:7	need 9:2 22:23	OCI 11:2
57:17	65:10,11 66:25	25:16,18 27:23	offensive 56:6
meet 61:8	67:4 68:15	34:21 35:9,20	offer 12:24 42:2
meeting 1:10 3:6	70:18,19	35:21 36:6	office 2:22
3:10,10 5:21	morning 7:14	42:16,21 46:9	11:15 13:1
41:1 44:24	8:21 29:10	52:21 54:12	16:11,13 37:25
57:6 59:13	45:1	needs 22:21	38:7 57:3
60:12,22,25	Morningstar	negative 46:25	officer 12:19
meetings 34:14	46:18	neighbor 44:5	14:1,8 19:6,6
47:5 59:22	mother 30:25	neighborhood	20:23 56:16
60:11,11 61:7	51:15,17 53:21	34:16 51:25	59:5 62:19
members 17:25	motion 6:4,7,15	neighborhoods	officers 8:4
24:6 43:25	43:12 59:20	23:11 29:23	11:19 13:16,18
56:12	61:14,16,23	never 47:13	13:18 14:9,18
men 7:13,16	62:5,12,25	53:23,25 54:1	14:22 15:3,15
44:16	63:19 65:22,24	new 8:4,13,25	19:2,16,19
mention 9:23	66:1,4,8,24	19:2,6,15,15	20:8,10 22:15
46:6	67:9,10 68:13	20:6 36:17	22:19 23:3,6
men's 7:17	68:16,20,22,24	news 8:21 26:22	23:10,13 24:15
metal 10:20	68:24 69:17,21	42:13	39:17,24 40:3
		night 8:2 44:18	46:10 53:1

57:10 58:24
okay 55:2, 3
 68:11
old 36:17, 20
 43:10 52:24, 25
 53:8
oldest 49:25
OMA 60:12, 17
once 42:3 43:2
ones 27:1 28:12
ongoing 34:4
 39:15
open 11:15 33:13
 33:15 42:7, 18
 43:14 48:8
 55:13 56:21
 59:22 60:11, 22
 61:7
operation 42:22
Operations 23:24
opinion 9:17
 27:25 37:25
opportunities
 32:3, 4, 5
opportunity 7:13
 18:24 43:15
opposed 6:4, 14
 11:10 25:23, 25
 61:22 62:12
 63:18 64:12
 69:24 71:15
opposite 15:17
 69:13
Ops 23:6, 9 45:22
 45:25
opted 55:12
order 3:11 23:14
 26:2 55:17
 61:14 66:5
organized 21:6
organizer 24:20
outreach 49:9
outside 28:18
 38:5 40:7 45:9
oversight 26:8
 26:11
overturning
 13:25
Oxendine 18:1
o'clock 9:7
 29:11, 11 52:11

P

paid 38:4, 5
Pamela 3:13 5:12
 11:1
panel 18:23
pants 46:21
paper 44:22
parents 30:19
 32:7 33:2
 45:15 50:10, 14
 50:22
park 35:20, 20
 46:13
parking 8:12, 13
 8:16
parks 32:5
part 13:13 17:8
 22:7 27:15
 31:18 34:17
 42:12, 13 61:8
participate 26:2
 30:8, 9 51:7
participating
 9:18
participation
 59:12
particular 5:3
 8:17 9:8, 21
 23:7, 15 46:23
 47:20 55:8
particularly
 57:16
parties 29:21
 54:22
partnership 49:9
party 37:19
passed 10:4
Patrol 22:13
patrolling 22:19
 47:1
pause 36:16 46:3
pay 32:2 59:8
paycheck 59:8
pedestrian 55:16
people 9:5, 14, 17
 19:18 24:3, 23
 29:22 30:7
 32:9, 16 33:21
 34:3, 5, 9, 14, 23
 35:2, 16, 16, 17
 35:23 42:14

43:3 46:8 47:6
 47:7, 14, 21
 48:2, 17, 21
 50:3, 9, 23
 51:12 53:8
 56:23
percent 11:11, 19
 11:21, 22, 22, 25
 12:1, 1, 2, 7, 7, 8
 12:8, 11, 12, 12
 12:13 18:8, 9
 18:11, 13, 14
 36:9
perception 47:12
 47:19 53:14
period 69:3, 3, 7
Perkins 57:1
permanent 68:7
permanently
 66:10 67:18
 68:2
permission 25:19
 26:23
permit 63:25
 67:22
permitted 66:18
perpetrated
 21:16 24:5
person 10:12
personnel 59:19
 62:16
perspective
 25:11 31:23
petitioner's
 61:3
phone 37:11 40:6
phones 37:11
picture 40:8
piggyback 19:2
 53:18
pilot 37:6, 7
 39:13, 14 40:16
 41:3, 25 42:1
place 23:20
 29:10, 18 34:12
 37:17 72:10
plaguing 19:1
plan 21:25
planner 24:21
planning 51:7
plate 35:10
play 10:21

played 10:6
playing 12:23
please 3:20 5:10
 43:21 59:15
 70:1
pleased 41:3
pleasure 17:3
 63:11 69:4
plethora 14:11
PM 1:12 49:24
point 8:25 13:6
 19:12 21:23
 23:7 26:9
 27:12 47:1
 50:15
points 45:21
police 1:8 3:6
 5:10 8:5 17:8
 18:22 19:3, 7
 19:16 20:1, 1, 4
 20:6, 8, 9, 14, 22
 21:13 22:15
 24:24 25:6, 13
 25:16, 17, 19, 24
 26:4, 5, 10, 12
 26:18, 24 27:5
 27:22 32:12
 34:24 37:4, 12
 37:17 38:1, 10
 45:12, 16 46:9
 46:22 47:25
 49:7 52:7, 8, 18
 53:1 55:5, 18
 55:22 56:6, 10
 57:10 58:18, 20
 62:15, 19 63:5
 63:24
polices 35:12
POLICE'S 2:22
policies 26:13
policing 24:7
 32:2
policy 39:2
 47:19 60:15
political 43:23
pones 57:16
position 43:7
positive 16:8, 13
 41:6 48:12
 51:3 56:16
possibility 48:9
possible 39:8

66:11
posture 69:16
post-curfew
 32:19
potential 48:19
PowerPoint 7:22
 8:11 17:21
practice 68:25
prayer 3:14
preaching 52:14
Precinct 8:3,5
 8:19 11:22
 32:25 59:14
precincts 11:21
 22:15 23:6
precludes 69:19
prepared 11:4
present 4:3,7,10
 4:13,17 5:11
 60:14
presented 42:18
 47:20
President 57:23
press 20:4
pretty 9:12,20
 15:9,12 32:20
 34:17 42:23
 43:6
previous 32:15
previously 55:6
prior 27:13 48:3
 48:4,7
private 49:10
probably 12:19
 15:7,17 28:18
problem 16:23
 22:25 54:4
 60:7
problems 30:16
procedural 68:6
 68:12
procedure 11:25
 12:11
procedures 26:14
proceedings 5:16
 71:18 72:9,14
process 13:14
 26:10 31:18
 32:17,21 39:5
 62:18 63:3,4,8
 64:1,4,24
 66:14 67:23

produced 38:18
professional
 10:6,21 16:22
 36:2 39:23
profile 57:16
program 19:19
 20:7 37:7,7
 39:13,16 40:12
 40:17 41:4,5
 41:25 42:2
 45:2 46:15
 48:14 55:8
 56:21
programming 54:8
progress 52:16
 53:4
project 55:9,10
 56:12
prolong 43:20
propaganda 47:12
proper 14:9
 61:15
properly 5:25
 6:10 14:10
 62:8 63:14
 64:8 68:17
 71:11
property 44:12
protect 31:9,10
 31:12,14 52:21
proud 44:25
provide 16:22
 20:11 52:19
provided 32:23
 32:25
providing 14:19
proving 66:9
public 1:16 3:9
 9:7 10:23
 15:19 20:3,11
 26:20 27:20
 29:12 32:6
 33:18,20 37:17
 43:5,15 47:19
 47:19 49:10
 52:16 55:14
 56:21 60:10,13
 60:15,17,19,22
 61:8
publicly 44:2
pull 22:14,19,21
 41:8

pulled 23:14
pulse 43:5
punitive 52:6
purpose 60:14
 61:13
purposes 60:20
pursuant 61:7
push 19:22
put 10:8 20:10
 23:20 35:9
 37:10 49:4,16
 49:22
p.m 3:3 71:19

Q

qualified 27:10
question 6:1,11
 22:18 23:19
 27:13 30:2
 47:21 48:2
 57:7 62:9
 63:15 64:9
 67:6 68:6,12
 68:21,23 69:4
 69:6 71:12
questions 12:15
 14:25 15:24
 16:15,25 17:12
 20:3,15 30:3
 69:21
quickly 45:21
Quinn 5:15
quite 10:21 41:6
 43:6 51:3
quorum 4:20
 60:13 61:12

R

R 2:6,11 4:9,19
 65:10,16 70:18
race 18:24 35:15
 35:16 47:21
 55:15
raise 26:17
raised 27:13
 32:15 50:11
ran 54:12
random 33:9
rank 7:11
rate 51:19
raving 24:11
reached 51:5

read 10:18 44:21
 59:22,24,25
 60:6,9 61:16
readable 56:8
readily 13:18
 14:19
reading 14:17
 58:8,11 60:4
ready 6:1,11
 62:9,24 63:15
 64:9 71:12
real 18:25 51:14
 52:12 54:8
realities 53:14
reality 34:13,13
 52:8 53:8
 58:24 59:5
really 7:23
 10:12,23 35:7
 39:16,16 41:3
 41:3 47:16
 50:17,22 51:12
 51:16 57:14
reapply 66:19
 69:2,10
reason 26:1 60:1
reasons 51:18
reassign 47:2
receive 15:21
received 11:7,9
 11:10,12,17
 16:1
receiving 25:24
 53:9
recess 61:25
recognize 51:14
recognized 10:13
 22:12
recommend 31:24
recommendation
 62:22 63:1,6
 63:23 64:3
 66:18 67:9,21
 68:1
recommending
 62:15
reconvene 62:5
reconvening 62:2
record 3:22 17:7
 60:1,24 69:9
recording 5:15
 40:7

recreational 32:6
recruit 16:2
reduced 72:12
reference 8:9
 9:2,5 10:16
 15:15 16:2
 25:21 27:17,21
 28:25 29:16
 30:3 34:15
 37:2 49:20
 59:18
reflect 17:7
regard 41:16
 45:3
regarding 18:23
 38:1
regards 38:16
 41:25 44:1,23
 45:6
Reginald 2:9 4:2
 65:1 70:9
regroup 10:8
regular 1:10
 21:3,3
rejected 61:3
relate 9:25
related 63:21
relates 14:5
 15:2 18:6
 31:22 39:3
relations 8:5
 55:19
relationship
 46:3,19,25
relationships
 56:11
released 55:14
remarks 45:3
 47:17
remember 24:10
 25:14 35:11,25
 36:7 46:19
 53:21
remind 26:7
rendering 60:15
Renee 2:24 5:6
repairs 44:6
report 7:3,3
 9:22 11:7
 12:14,19 37:1
 42:4

reported 40:21
 41:2 56:20
 72:8
REPORTER 72:1
reporting 5:17
 9:11
reports 14:17
 45:24
represent 18:22
representative
 55:22
representing
 2:22 5:2
request 26:21
 37:24 38:3
 61:3
requested 37:24
required 38:6
 61:12
reside 44:1
resident 37:5
residents 23:11
resorted 33:1
resources 22:14
respective 21:1
 21:4 22:4
respond 29:12
 33:22 43:3
responded 27:15
 30:2
responsibilities
 27:7
responsibility
 21:18 36:1
responsible
 22:20 26:8,14
 26:18 27:5
 30:10
rest 20:2
restraint 48:4,4
 48:8
restricted 29:22
 34:10
restriction 34:7
 35:8
results 40:16,19
retired 20:8
return 62:3
reverse 69:16
review 39:2,5
reviews 24:11
revisit 17:5

 41:1
re-entered 64:24
Ricardo 2:11 4:8
 65:10 70:18
Richard 2:7 4:12
 65:13 70:21
ride 44:16,16
riding 44:17
riffraff 46:14
right 6:20 7:1
 11:6 13:2
 18:11 53:11
 54:17 55:11
 67:7,14
River 19:25
 20:19 22:8,12
 23:20 24:14,16
 24:19 28:20,20
 30:20,24
riverfront 22:16
 35:19
robberies 18:9
robbery 23:13
Robert 5:14
 63:21
rocks 54:17
role 12:23 34:24
roll 3:20 4:19
 64:15,16 70:1
Ron 45:20
room 42:15
rooms 31:19
Rose 5:16 72:18
Rouge 35:20
run 35:14
running 3:24,25
 4:5
Russell 8:22
 45:2

S

safe 21:19 24:14
 29:6 33:6
safety 1:16 3:9
 21:21
sake 59:16
sat 31:19
Saturday 7:14
 52:11
save 39:24 60:9
saw 27:10 43:1
saying 46:7

 51:13
scheduled 61:2
school 10:1,2,22
 10:23 19:9,10
 50:8 51:22
schools 51:18
Scott 45:20,20
 51:6 54:10
scrutiny 9:15
season 50:8
second 16:3
 17:10,24 37:19
 39:13 62:7,9
 62:23 63:20
 66:25 67:2,3,4
 68:13,17
seconded 71:12
Secondly 46:5
Secretary 2:3
 3:19,21,23 4:4
 4:8,11,14,18
 5:11 36:11
 59:21,25 60:10
 64:14,18,21,25
 65:3,6,9,12,15
 65:18,21 66:14
 66:23 67:1
 68:14 70:2,5,8
 70:11,14,17,20
 70:23 71:1,4
sections 49:10
see 5:1 6:19
 10:17 13:10,20
 21:12,15,16
 22:25 25:10
 27:2,8 36:3,15
 52:11
seeing 20:7
seeking 13:15
seen 12:21 21:9
 40:3 46:2
 53:23,25 54:1
selected 41:18
 41:20
send 31:1
senior 19:9
 46:15
seniors 44:18
sensitive 46:24
separate 8:3
serious 5:4 8:20
 29:20 34:2

42:22	68:14, 22	spoke 8:12 16:9	58:11
serve 20:9	sit 18:23	56:16	suggesting 26:17
server-based	sitting 4:23	SS 72:5	suggestion 33:14
41:22	27:22 54:7	St 53:13	33:14 48:13
service 5:17	situation 44:1	staff 5:9 8:9	57:8
12:1, 12 19:5	51:13	17:16	summer 50:7
19:13, 14, 22	situations 48:20	stand 61:23	Summit 49:6, 11
20:12 56:14	six 4:21 61:12	standard 13:21	supervised 31:9
session 42:8, 11	71:5	standing 69:9	supervising
42:13, 19 43:13	slate 8:4	start 57:8 58:18	30:14
59:23 60:2, 18	smart 37:11	started 12:20	supervision
60:21, 23 61:2	Smith 43:23, 23	19:17	30:18
61:6, 9, 12, 24	snacks 33:1	state 28:16 46:8	supervisor 52:17
62:1	social 20:23	46:22 47:25	supply 24:24
set 68:7 72:11	society 35:22	61:10 72:4	Support 6:9
sets 55:13	36:4	stated 39:21	61:18 63:13
settlement 38:16	sock 50:21	44:15 56:1	64:7
Sgt 5:15 57:1	solely 32:12	57:9	supported 5:24
share 25:9	soliciting 43:3	statement 46:11	6:1, 11 63:15
sharing 27:9	solution 32:11	statements 43:21	64:9
43:10	32:12	states 61:8	supposed 28:11
Shelby 2:7 4:12	solutions 32:2	statistics 24:1	30:21 37:13
4:13 15:1 30:6	soon 38:19 39:8	56:18	sure 9:12, 20
30:13 65:13, 14	63:22	stats 48:5	12:22 13:1, 23
70:21, 22 71:9	sorry 14:16 35:5	stature 10:10	13:25 14:1, 21
shift 26:17	sort 43:12	statute 61:11	16:7, 18 21:18
shooting 46:20	sound 69:9	stay 16:12 43:20	26:11 28:17
shootings 18:12	source 56:2	stenographically	34:17 42:2, 14
shop 19:5	sources 40:8	72:9	43:6 49:13
shot 24:3, 4 29:3	South 10:4	step 51:1	52:15 55:4
33:7 57:18	sparked 27:21	steps 23:1	57:2
show 29:13 69:7	speak 9:1 13:22	Stewart 59:19	surprise 58:23
showcase 56:15	15:25 16:5	61:4 62:17, 17	sustained 12:6, 8
shown 23:9	18:20 68:24	stir 7:23	sworn 8:6 20:10
side 35:19, 19	speaker 7:25	stone 13:25	system 38:19
sides 21:4, 9	speaking 26:9	stops 55:17	
57:12, 14	speaks 14:20	storage 41:11, 16	
sidewalk 44:17	Special 23:6, 9	story 9:24 10:5	T
signed 55:12	24:21 45:22, 25	40:5, 9	Tabernacle 7:14
56:5	specific 15:10	street 1:14	table 52:4
simple 61:11	15:11 22:4	20:11 44:17	Tactical 23:24
Sims 18:2	23:16 60:19	streets 15:19	tactics 25:18
Sinai-Grace	69:2, 10	stress 16:17	26:19 27:6
52:10, 22 53:2	specifics 22:6	structure 54:9	take 17:24 22:25
53:9	speed 18:4	student 54:25	29:10 30:25
sir 4:22 5:18, 19	spent 59:3	subject 21:13	35:7 46:12
30:5 33:14	spike 18:7	60:11	53:19 69:17
42:24 43:8	spinning 13:9	sub-motion 67:13	taken 18:10
45:19 49:1	spirit 19:5	successes 20:5	32:24, 24 44:9
51:9 53:16	Spivey 7:25 8:23	successful 24:12	47:18 61:25
54:17, 18 58:15	29:11 43:2	32:1	talk 7:19 20:25
60:1 66:4	45:2	suggest 47:15	48:17 53:22
			54:3

talked 8:11
 18:25 19:24
 38:8 39:1
 46:13 49:19
 51:11 53:23
 59:15
talking 8:23
 10:19 29:18
 50:6 58:12
talks 56:7
target 33:24
task 8:18 30:7
 39:3
Taylor 4:15
teacher 21:12
 22:11
teams 10:23
telephone 29:13
tell 16:9 40:9
telling 31:1
Ten 36:13
terms 7:15, 17, 22
 7:23 8:13, 19
 9:10, 17 10:1, 3
 10:9, 10, 14, 22
 11:1 13:5
 17:11 27:23, 24
 29:20 31:25
 32:7, 18 34:2, 8
 34:18, 24 36:17
 36:20, 23 37:2
 37:8 43:14
 47:25 48:6
 50:11 51:13
 57:9, 11, 15, 17
 58:23 59:1, 7
testimony 72:10
tests 45:23
thank 3:15, 18, 21
 4:22 5:7, 8, 19
 6:18, 23, 25
 11:3 12:17, 18
 17:17, 19, 20
 23:17 28:6
 31:16, 17 36:14
 37:20 38:12, 13
 38:21 39:9
 43:9 49:1 51:9
 54:17, 18 57:4
 57:25 69:19
 71:16
thanks 49:17

theatres 53:24
thing 13:7 14:15
 14:16 19:4
 35:7, 11
things 13:1, 2
 14:11 19:23
 20:13, 25 21:5
 21:11 40:2
 55:14
think 9:1, 7
 10:11, 13 13:6
 13:9 15:6, 9, 10
 15:12, 16 16:15
 17:1 19:19
 22:22, 23 25:20
 27:17 34:2, 21
 40:13 41:1
 42:17 43:12
 45:5 46:8, 23
 47:3, 4, 16, 17
 48:2, 9, 10, 21
 53:19 54:19
 56:2, 13, 22
 57:12 60:6
 66:6 69:14
third 1:14 37:19
thought 40:19
 57:19 67:7, 8, 8
 67:19
thoughts 45:5
thousands 21:7
three 10:6 13:11
 19:17 23:23
 24:2 28:15
 41:19 42:11
 55:13 71:5
thumbs 54:7
Thursday 1:12
 3:2 5:21 6:6
 60:25
tied 10:7
time 3:12, 19 7:1
 9:10 10:25
 23:7, 15 24:1
 29:7, 24 30:4
 43:16, 19 46:23
 49:14, 23 50:15
 59:16, 17, 18
 60:9 69:11, 15
 72:10
times 12:20
 39:21, 25 47:9

today 11:5 18:3
 66:19, 22
told 44:11 46:22
tool 21:20
tools 21:20
 24:13 31:13
totally 9:4
 29:19
touch 19:21
tough 52:19
town 21:4, 9
 51:16 52:12
track 10:2, 2, 14
 12:21
tracking 13:7
 57:8
traditionally
 9:18
traffic 15:20
 55:16
training 14:21
transcript 5:17
transcription
 72:12, 14
transparency
 55:17 57:13
traumatic 52:24
treat 50:19
tremendous 53:5
trending 13:10
true 40:3 72:13
try 41:7 50:10
trying 34:20
 50:19 54:22
 55:8 58:21
 60:9 67:16
tune 9:20
tuned 35:2
turn 18:10
turned 67:10
turning 14:6
turnout 49:21
tweet 20:25
 21:24
twiddling 54:7
two 10:3 17:6, 7
 24:2, 3 44:10
two-minute 43:21
type 10:9 27:18
 33:3, 19 34:18
 34:22 37:12
 50:1, 4, 6, 12

types 32:8
Tyrone 7:4

U

ultimate 57:13
ultimately 21:17
 28:13 63:6
 64:2
understand 19:14
 25:22 26:22
 28:21 29:5, 17
 31:21 42:20, 25
 51:12 52:3
understanding
 28:11 29:9
 53:20
understands
 52:16
undertaken 8:17
underway 20:7
unfavorable
 15:23
unfounded 12:7
uniform 14:10
 15:15
unit 15:11 24:22
 38:6, 10 39:23
units 11:20 15:4
 15:11 45:22
University 55:1
unknown 11:19
 12:19
unruly 47:8
unsung 10:13
unsupervised
 30:15
un-uniformed
 15:11
update 11:2
 38:14, 22, 25
 39:12 43:1, 10
upset 44:4
use 27:7 55:15
usually 22:2
 24:19 69:16

V

valuable 56:2
Van 49:25
Vann 2:8 4:16, 17
 36:22 62:3
various 24:5

vendor 41:17, 23
 42:4
vendors 41:19
versus 9:16
 29:23 32:11
 34:16 35:16
Vice-Chairperson
 2:5
victims 23:12
video 37:11, 16
 40:7
videos 23:8, 9
view 26:9
violence 21:16
 31:20 36:4
 56:19
violent 23:10, 14
 25:2
visible 13:19
volume 59:2
vote 28:10 61:11
 68:7 69:13
voted 67:7 69:1
 69:18
votes 65:22, 22

W

wait 33:23 40:6
 68:19
waiting 39:19
Walk 20:19
want 3:5 9:23
 16:20 17:6, 24
 18:17 26:7
 31:11, 23 36:3
 42:9, 16 43:18
 45:21 47:15
 48:3 50:14
 51:3, 12, 23
 52:9, 15, 18
 53:17 57:11
 58:6 67:6
wanted 7:17
 12:23 13:3
 14:4 17:5 33:8
 35:7 37:14
 39:4 46:6, 14
 49:4, 16, 19
warm 3:5
Washington 41:14
 41:14 42:23
 43:8

wasn't 51:24
 52:25
water 32:25
way 7:23 14:14
 22:5 24:6 25:8
 33:5, 12 41:23
 45:11 56:9
 66:7
Wayne 8:7 72:6
ways 47:3
wearing 14:5
 46:2
Wednesday 29:10
week 9:7 18:7
 19:7, 16 33:22
 38:8 49:6
 52:22
weekly 3:5 59:13
weeks 19:17
 36:22
weigh 29:14
 33:25
welcome 3:5
welcomed 16:20
welcomes 16:21
went 10:2, 20
 51:20
west 35:19
we'll 18:18 28:7
 38:20 49:5
we're 13:1, 24
 14:5, 11, 12
 18:8, 11, 13, 16
 18:17 20:7, 14
 24:12 25:5, 6
 25:20 26:18
 29:18 30:1, 19
 31:3, 13 32:15
 33:13, 15 34:19
 35:3, 17 37:6, 7
 41:4 42:1 43:7
 45:10, 13 49:6
 49:8 50:5, 19
 51:8 52:7 53:4
we've 18:10
 19:17 23:8
 33:1 34:9
 39:21 45:24
 51:14 69:15
wheels 13:9
White 2:6 4:19
 6:16, 19, 21

8:12 12:17
 31:15, 16 40:19
 42:2 48:16
 54:19 55:6, 7
 57:22 62:6
 64:7 65:16, 17
 68:19, 23 70:24
 70:25 71:10
wholeheartedly
 45:16 53:7
who've 31:20
Wiley 8:9
Willie 2:4, 10
 3:7, 25 6:20
 64:21 65:18
 70:5 71:1
win 10:2
withholding
 42:17
witnesses 13:15
woman 58:12
wondered 38:25
wonderful 16:14
 16:24 17:2
 19:20 44:22
Woodward 53:24
work 14:20 48:15
 50:10 53:5
worked 55:6
working 15:18
 17:3 41:13
 49:7 51:8
works 54:11
worth 42:12
Wouldn't 15:13
wrapped 41:5
wrapping 42:1
writing 37:25
written 27:3

X

X 51:23

Y

yay 65:22
yay"s 71:5
yeah 15:6 23:9
 53:10
year 11:14 18:10
 21:14, 15, 15, 25
 22:12 23:20
 24:11, 17 41:2

46:12, 16, 18
 50:18
years 10:6 12:22
 13:11 17:6, 7
 23:23 28:15
 29:2 31:19
 32:15 47:5
 52:24, 25
year-to-date
 18:9
yesterday 37:8
 42:12
young 4:24 7:16
 7:16 9:5, 14, 24
 29:22 30:7
 32:9, 16 34:3
 36:15 44:21
 47:6 48:1, 17
 48:21 50:3, 9
 50:23 51:7
 57:8 58:12
youngsters 45:7
youth 20:18 25:1
 28:18, 22 30:14
 30:15 31:8, 9
 31:12 32:4
 48:13 49:6, 8
 49:11 53:19
 54:3, 12, 12, 14

Z

Zones 8:14

\$

\$178.67 37:4

0

OMA 60:12

1

1 2:7 8:14
10 9:7 11:22
 12:12 29:10
 36:10
100 36:9
11 12:8 29:11
 36:17 49:23
 52:11
113 12:5
12 12:7 66:2, 8
 66:12, 19, 19, 21
 69:2

12th 16:3	4th 32:25 59:13
13 24:9,10	400 10:3,20
1301 1:14	401 11:16
131 11:10	423 11:16
14 24:9,10,10	45 12:11
50:13	48226 1:18
15 36:13 50:13	
15.268 (h) 61:7	5
150 22:14,19	5 2:10 12:12
23:2	5th 8:2,4,19
16 12:7	11:22
16-year-old 24:3	5.262 (b) 60:16
33:7	5:23 71:19
17 18:8	
170 11:15	6
171 11:24	6 2:5 11:21 12:1
18 52:24,25	6th 11:21
19 18:9	68 12:4,4,10
2	7
2 2:8 8:14 49:15	7 2:11 18:11
2:58 3:3	70s 9:25
2011 24:1	
2012 24:1,9,10	8
2014 11:10	8 6:5 18:14
2015 1:12 3:2	8th 11:21
6:6 11:8,14,18	84 54:1
11:18,23 12:3	89 11:9,18,23
12:5,10 61:1	
2015-C 16:2	9
21 55:11,12 56:4	9th 11:21
23 12:1	90-day 42:1
24 11:25 69:2	
25th 49:11	
28 6:6	
29 12:11	
3	
3 2:9 8:14 18:13	
3:00 1:12	
30 40:14	
32 11:11,25	
361 20:20 21:24	
38 12:6	
39 11:18	
4	
4 1:12 3:2,8	
5:21 8:2 10:4	
10:4,20,20	
11:22 49:15,24	
56:5 61:1	